
 

 

Agenda 
 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Monday, 23 November 2020 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Cabinet 

 
Date Tuesday, 1 December 2020 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Virtual Meeting via Teams 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 
 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs B S Fortune 
Mrs I Sanderson 

M G Taylor 
S Watson 
D A Webster 
 

 
Other Members of the Council for information  
 
 
Note: Owing to the recent Covid-19 pandemic and government guidance, the Council has 
made arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020, and subsequent Regulations permitting 
remote meetings, to hold the meeting virtually via Teams.  For access to the meeting, please 
click the link on the internet to direct you to Teams or alternatively please dial the telephone 
number 020 3855 5195 followed by the access code 629 911 82#.  This Information is also 
displayed on the internet. 
 
For further information, please contact Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer by 
dialling 01609 767015 or email committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
 
  Page No 

 
1.  Minutes  

 
 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 3 November 2020 (CA.4 
- CA.8), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

Resources Management   
  

3.  Economic Response and Recovery Plan  
 

1 - 20 

 This report seeks approval for the Hambleton Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Plan, attached as Annex A to the report. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, That Cabinet approves and 
recommends to Council that the Hambleton Covid-19 Economic 
Response and Recovery Plan is adopted; the plan is regularly reviewed 
and with the agreement of the Portfolio Holder is amended to respond to 
the changing Covid-19 situation. 
 

 

4.  2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year 
Review  
 

21 - 54 

 This report provides the Quarter 2 update at 30 September 2020 on the 
progress of the capital programme 2020/21 and the treasury 
management position.  A full schedule of the capital programme 
2020/21 schemes is attached at Annex A, together with the relevant 
update on progress of each scheme.) 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the net decrease of £31,688,990 in the capital 
programme to £20,544,776 and all expenditure movements as detailed 
in Annex B and also in the capital programme attached at Annex A of 
the report; the increase of capital expenditure of £5,515,953 funded as 
follows: £3,687,641 from borrowing, £1,454,670 is from external 
grants/contributions, £187,142 is funded from capital, £150,000 from the 
One Off fund, £25,000 from Revenue Contributions receipts and 
£11,500 from Computer Fund; the funding allocation to the capital 
programme as detailed in paragraph 3.  1 and 3.2 of the report; the 
reduction in the Affordable Borrowing Limit to £62,500,000 as detailed in 
paragraph 4.2; the treasury management and prudential indicators at 
Annex E of the report have been revised in light of the changes in the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement in paragraph 4.2; and to note 
the position of the Council’s third party companies at Annex F of the 
report. 
 

 



5.  2020/21 Q2 Revenue Monitoring Report  
 

55 - 66 

 This report provides an update on the revenue budget position of the 
Council and the reserve funds at the end of September 2020. 
 
That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that the budget 
remains at £9,269,670 as detailed in paragraph 3.8 of the report; that 
reserves will be used to cover the shortfall created by the covid-19 
pandemic if sufficient funds are not received from Government at the 
year-end as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the report; the allocation from 
the One Off Fund at paragraph 8.6 of the report of £231,000; that it will 
not be part of a Business Rates Pool or Pilot Scheme in 2021/22 as 
detailed in paragraph 9.1 of the report; and that a ‘vehicle’ is not to be 
set up as detailed in paragraph 10.0 of the report in relation to VAT 
partial exemption. 
 

 

6.  The World of James Herriot Centre, Thirsk  
 

67 - 72 

 The report seeks approval from Cabinet and Council for the extension of 
the lease terms presently in place at The World of James Herriot for the 
purposes of the continued provision of a museum/visitor attraction 
celebrating the life and times of the veterinary surgeon Alf Wight. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, it is proposed that Cabinet agrees 
and recommends to Council that the existing lease with The World of 
James Herriot Ltd is surrendered and a new lease for a 30 year period 
at a peppercorn is established and suitable covenants are placed in the 
contract documents to protect the Council’s position as set out in 
paragraph 5.3 of the report. 
 

 

7.  Making a Difference Grants  
 

73 - 76 

 Following the success of the Making a Difference Grants’ programme 
over the last six years, whereby £125,000 was made available each 
year to assist community projects, it is proposed that £250,000 is 
allocated to finance the 2021/22 Making a Difference Grants programme 
in light of the exceptional difficulties experienced by our communities in 
2020. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approve an allocation of 
£250,000 from the One-Off Fund to be used to fund a 2021/22 Making a 
Difference Grants programme, applying the criteria and timetable set out 
in Annex A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Policy Implementation   
  

8.  Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22  
 

77 - 80 

 The purpose recommends to Cabinet and seeks approval to continue 
with the current design of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
which was introduced in April 2020; and increase the level of income, 
within the income bands, as shown in paragraph 1.4 of the report by the 
appropriate level of inflation measured by the Consumer Price Index at 
the 1 October 2020. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council that the current income banded Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme with no changes other than the increase of the 
income bands in line with CPI at 1 October 2020, is adopted from April 
2021. 
 

 

9.  Exclusion of the Public and Press  
 

 

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
during consideration of item 10 on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

 

10.  Treadmills Phases 2a and 2b Development Update  
 

81 - 88 

 This report sets out proposed changes to previously approved proposals 
in light of a changed market due to Covid-19 and due to new 
opportunities.  The Council previously approved £9,612,703 to acquire 
and forward fund the development of Phase 2 in November 2019 
(Minute CA.26).  The Council also approved the changed terms with 
C4DI in July 2020 (Minute CA.64). 
 

 

 



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: Hambleton Covid-19 Economic Response and Recovery Plan 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 To seek approval for the Hambleton Covid-19 Economic Response and Recovery 

Plan, attached as Annex A to the report. 
 

1.2 Since the emergence of the Covid-19 pandemic, businesses have faced significant 
challenges in the operating environment including restrictions on trading, difficulties 
with accessing the market and changes to consumer behaviour. 
 

1.3 This has had a negative impact on the local economy and the York & North 
Yorkshire LEP report that 113,300 employees were on the furlough scheme at the 
end of June, high street footfall declined by 60% nationally and almost a quarter of 
all businesses had to temporarily close or pause trading at the start of Covid-19. 
The hardest hit sectors are tourism and retail which are formed from nearly a 
quarter of businesses. The LEP estimate that the regional economy will drop by 
7.6%, equating to a decrease of £1.5bn and 31,000 individuals becoming newly 
unemployed. 

 
1.4 The council has worked throughout the Covid-19 pandemic to provide support to 

businesses through the administration of government grants, providing guidance on 
how to operate businesses Covid-safely and providing materials to support safe 
reopening following the easing of lockdown restrictions. 
 

1.5 York & North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership have produced a plan to 
reshape the regional economy and emerge from the Covid-19 crisis as a greener, 
fairer and stronger place. It aims at a strategic level to protect jobs and businesses; 
create new job opportunities and reshape the region’s economy across four key 
themes of: 

 Place and Infrastructure 

 People and Communities 

 Business and Innovation 

 Low Carbon and Environment 
 

1.6 The Hambleton Covid-19 Economic Response and Recovery Plan supports the 
LEP strategic vision and will deliver tangible, operational support to businesses at 
the frontline. The initial phase of the plan covers the immediate response, relief and 
support through the first 0-12 months of the crisis. The later phase of the plan 
supports businesses in economic recovery and in developing their resilience in the 
immediate post-covid world, 12-18+ months. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
1.7 The situation with the Covid-19 pandemic and how it affects Hambleton businesses 

changes regularly and any future restrictions will impact further on economic 
stability and growth. For this reason, the Hambleton Covid-19 Economic Response 
and Recovery Plan is a living document that will need to be constantly reviewed and 
updated to reflect the latest position. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 This plan aims to support economic recovery in response to the Covid-19 pandemic 

and build future resilience of businesses based within Hambleton district; this 
supports the Council priority of Driving Economic Vitality. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
 
3.1 The key risk is in not approving the recommendation(s) as shown below:- 
  

Risk Implication Gross 
Prob 

Gross 
Imp 

Gross 
Total 

Preventative 
action 

Net 
Prob 

Net 
Imp 

Net 
Total 

Without support, 
businesses within 
Hambleton district 
are unable to 
recover from the 
effects of the 
Covid-19 
pandemic. 

The local economy 
goes into decline 
leading to business 
closures or 
retraction and loss 
of jobs. 

4 5 20 Develop an action 
plan to assist 
businesses to 
recover from the 
Covid-19 pandemic 
and become more 
resilient for future 
challenges. 

2 4 8 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
There are no significant risks associated with approving the recommendation. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The plan is deliverable within existing resources and budgets, this includes the 

Economic Development Fund and project specific funding that has been secured: 
High Street Heritage Action Zone, Reopening High Streets Safely grant, Getting 
Building Fund, LEP Local Growth Fund and other grants provided by central 
government; as well as the Future High Streets Fund (if successful) for projects 
related to the FHSF scheme. 

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications in relation to this report. 
 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
  

Page 2



7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that:- 
 

(1) the Hambleton Covid-19 Economic Response and Recovery Plan is adopted; 
and 
 

(2) the plan is regularly reviewed and with the agreement of the Portfolio Holder 
is amended to respond to the changing Covid-19 situation. 

 
 
Helen Kemp 
Director of Economy and Planning 
 
 
Background papers: ‘Covid-19 A Plan to reshape our Economy’ York & North 

Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
 
Author ref: HK 
 
Contact: Helen Kemp 
  Director of Economy and Planning 
  01642 767204 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



a place togrow

Economic 
Response and 
Recovery PlanP

age 5



i a place to grow

Contents
Statement from the Deputy Leader  ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 1

Response/Relief  ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2

• Vibrant market towns  ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2

• Supporting & growing businesses  ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3

• Enabling our people to play an active part in the economy  ................................................................................................................................................................................ 6

• Making our attractive Yorkshire environments work for us  ................................................................................................................................................................................ 7

Recovery/Reshape ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 8

• Vibrant market towns  ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 8

• Supporting & growing businesses  ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10

• Enabling our people to play an active part in the economy  ................................................................................................................................................................................ 12

P
age 6



1a place to grow

Covid-19 has had a massive impact on our national and regional economies and Hambleton district is no exception, with businesses across all sectors 
affected. From manufacturing to High Streets, micro to multinational our businesses have faced unprecedented market conditions and demands. The 
full effect of the pandemic for our residents and businesses is still not known and it may be some time before we understand the long-term influence.

Whilst this council offered immediate response to our communities in the wake of the Covid-19 pandemic, we need to have a planned approach to the 
ongoing response and ultimate recovery of the district economy. The economic response and recovery plan is built around an initial response, relief 
and support through the first 0-12 months of the Covid-19 crisis and a longer-term recovery and reshape phase to support businesses and economic 
recovery in the immediate post-covid world and beyond.

The Hambleton District Council economic response and recovery plan has been tailored to work alongside the York and North Yorkshire LEP plan to 
reshape our economy, maximising the opportunities and support available for our businesses. 

Hambleton District Council has long recognised that our businesses are at the forefront of delivering a vibrant future for our communities. This 
economic response and recovery plan outlines how we will continue supporting and working with our businesses to get Hambleton back on track as a 
place to grow.

Councillor Peter Wilkinson

Deputy Leader of Hambleton District Council and Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance

Statement from the Deputy Leader

P
age 7



2 a place to grow

Vibrant market towns
Meets with LEP: Place and infrastructure

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. Reopening High Streets Safely. 1. Initial Risk-based action plan developed to ensure our High Street 
and significant neighbourhood shopping areas reopen safely and 
continued response to the changing Covid situation.

HDC
Immediate and ongoing
Town/Parish Councils, Business 
Networks, NYCC Highways

2. Regular review and update of RHSS town plans (whenever key 
Covid guidance changes, changes in public behaviour, called for by 
stakeholder).

HDC
Ongoing through Covid response
Town/Parish Councils, Business 
Networks, NYCC Highways

3. Ongoing dialogue and support to High Street Businesses to build 
confidence and resilience. Including actions such as:
a. Delivery of ‘Business Support’ Packs - include social distancing 

materials and guidance.

HDC
Til’ end May 2021

2. Increased safe use of our High 
streets - increasing footfall.

1. Enjoy Hambleton Safely campaign (Raise awareness that Hambleton 
is open and safe to visit - digital and local in print)
Adapt and refresh throughout the Covid Response.

HDC
Ongoing

2. Renew footfall counters and develop analysis to inform approaches 
across market towns; sharing data with stakeholders.

HDC
Ongoing

3. Continue to review arrangements for flexible Northallerton Market 
operations, closing the High Street on market days as possible to 
ensure safe operation.

Response/Relief Initial response, relief and support through Covid crisis - 0-12 months

P
age 8



3a place to grow

3. Increased use of pavement 
cafés - allowing businesses 
to remain viable with safe 
distancing requirements in 
place.

1. Establish pavement licence application procedure. HDC

2. Use a proactive approach, visiting businesses to provide support 
and guidance in developing their applications.

HDC & NYCC
Ongoing

3. Pavement licence campaign - promote and encourage more 
businesses to apply.

HDC
Til’ end September 2021

4. Empower our market towns to 
improve their vibrancy through 
applying local knowledge and 
resources.

1. Establish a Town Futures Team in each town with members from 
local businesses (incl BID where appropriate), town council and 
communities who will have a clear mandate to look long-term and 
the purpose should be to improve the economy of the town.

HDC
Spring 2021

2. Undertake a town centre audit for each town based on the place 
management checklist referenced in 21st Century Towns: A report from 
Metro Dynamics to the York, North Yorkshire and East Riding LEP.

HDC
Spring 2021
Town Futures Team

Supporting & growing businesses
Meets with LEP: Business and innovation

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. Understanding businesses and 
how Covid has affected them.

1. Undertake business survey on impact of Covid. HDC
June 2020, January 2021, July 2021

2. Analyse data from other sources to understand the economic impact 
of Covid in Hambleton and inform future plans.

HDC
Ongoing

P
age 9



4 a place to grow

2. Support businesses to 
be informed about their 
responsibilities under Covid.

1. Understand why only 41% of business surveyed have engaged in 
business support but 75% would like to know more about support 
available. Develop plan to make business advice more accessible/
raise awareness.

HDC
Jan 2021

2. Advise businesses through:
• Website - HDC and Govt
• Direct advice from Environmental Health, Business and Economy 

Officers.

HDC
Ongoing

3. Business sustainability. 1. Promotion and Administration of Business Grants. HDC
Til’ end of grant

2. Promotion/Signposting SME Grant Funding to LEP and provide 
assistance to complete/submit applications.

Y&NY Growth Hub
End September 

3. Promotion/Signposting Kick-starting Tourism Grant Funding to LEP 
and provide assistance to complete/submit applications.

Y&NY Growth Hub
End September

4. Encourage local residents and 
visitors to discover different 
aspects of Hambleton:
• Hospitality/Attractions
• Restaurants/Pubs/Cafes
• Natural Areas.

1. Launch and implement #DiscoverHambleton campaign:
a. Establish microsite with Hambleton specific visitor and local 

information
b. Run digital campaign encouraging locals and those in a 2-hour 

drive time to visit Hambleton
c. Link to Hambleton tourism, attraction and hospitality businesses.

HDC
Spring 2021

P
age 10



5a place to grow

5. Support for the Hambleton 
tourism and visitor industry.

1. Appoint a tourism industry advisor to the council to develop a 
tourism plan and to support with Hambleton businesses.

HDC
upto June 2021

2. Develop a Hambleton Tourism Plan
a. Implement priority actions.

HDC
Dec 2020

6. Tenants with sustainable 
business.

1. Work with each of our tenants to understand their needs and 
develop individual plans to support them into sustainable post-covid 
operations.

HDC
Ongoing

7. Increased footfall (spend) in 
market towns.

1. Develop themed (covid-safe) campaigns to attract local spend (and 
neighbouring towns e.g. Middlesbrough, Darlington) to Hambleton 
market towns.
a. A Christmas like never before
b. New Year New Habits
c. Spring Forward
d. Summer campaign (to be confirmed).

HDC
Dec and ongoing through Covid
Businesses, FSB, Town Councils, 
Northallerton BID, TIC

2. Work with retail and hospitality to develop new routes to access 
market through improved Shop Local approach.

HDC
Spring 2021
Businesses, FSB, Town Councils, 
Northallerton BID

3. Suspend car parking charges to support recovery coming out of 
lockdown 2.0 and link to Enjoy Hambleton Safely campaign.

HDC
December 2020

P
age 11



6 a place to grow

Enabling our people to play an active part in the economy
Meets with LEP: People & community

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. Individual financial security. 1. Administration of Test and Trace Support Payments to provide £500 
payment to those required to self-isolate and in need of financial 
support.

HDC

2. Increased jobs/
apprenticeships for young 
people.

2. Promote the government’s Kickstart programme and work with 
businesses to implement.

HDC 
Nov 2020 and ongoing
(FSB as Intermediary)

3. Covid safe events, supporting 
community cohesion.

1. Identify how to support Christmas spirit and develop Covid-safe 
events across Hambleton towns and villages when the usual 
Christmas events have been cancelled.

HDC
Dec 2020
Town/Parish Councils, Business 
Networks

2. Commission Insight with Passion to provide workshops to 
businesses on how to develop ‘retail theatre’ and build a customer 
experience to encourage increased custom.

4. Minimised effects of 
redundancy, redeployment or 
reduced hours.

1. Maintain existing and forge new links with local businesses to 
understand redundancy risks and impact of redeployment and 
reduced hours. (Build on survey feedback).

HDC
Ongoing
Businesses, Job Centre, LEP, National 
Careers Service

2. Develop programmes to support those at risk of redundancy, reduced 
hours or redeployment to find alternative employment/start business.
a. e.g. ‘Matchmaking’ those at risk of redundancy to new 

opportunities in other Hambleton businesses.

HDC
Jan 2021 and ongoing
Businesses, Job Centre, LEP

P
age 12



7a place to grow

Making our attractive Yorkshire environments work for us
Meets with LEP: Low carbon and environment

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. Green Links for our market 
towns to support healthier, 
pleasanter and greener access 
options.

1. Develop cycling and walking infrastructure for all market towns. HDC
Ongoing
NYCC, Town Councils, Landowners, 
Public Health
Developers

2. Improved knowledge and 
increased purchase of local 
food production.

1. Develop campaign to highlight local food production, provenance 
and carbon footprint - buy local is best!

HDC
Spring 2021 and onwards
LEP, Businesses, Hospitality trade

P
age 13



8 a place to grow

Vibrant market towns
Meets with LEP: Place and infrastructure

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. High Streets and town centres 
that are attractive and ready 
for the next generation.

1. Develop and submit FHSF Plans, complete additional clarification 
requests.

HDC
Oct 2020

2. Commence delivery of projects to improve the public realm. HDC
Ongoing
NYCC, Town Council, Northallerton 
BID, LEP, Businesses

3. Undertake analysis to identify key learning points that can be 
applied across other Hambleton town centres and high streets.

HDC
Summer 2020 and ongoing

4. Undertake market town masterplan study for Easingwold. HDC
Contract award May 2021

5. Commission a study to look at re-purposing empty shops on the High 
Street and identify post-covid uses that energise the town space.

HDC
Spring 2021

6. Develop and implement scheme for Artisan Yard. HDC
Spring 2021 onwards

7. Commission work from Insight with Passion to work with businesses 
to embrace diversification to redefine their role in the future of the 
high street and town centres.

HDC
Jan 2021 onwards

Recovery/Reshape Supporting businesses and economic recovery in the 
immediate post-covid world - 12 to 18+ months

P
age 14



9a place to grow

2. Restore local historic character 
and improve the public realm.

1. Appoint High Street Heritage Action Zone Project Officer. HDC
Nov 2020

2. Commence delivery of High Street Heritage Action Zone project 
and link to delivery of Town Hall Square, Northallerton.

HDC
Summer 2020 thru’ 2024

3. ID and apply learning from Northallerton HSHAZ project to other 
High Streets across Hambleton.

HDC
Autumn 2021 and ongoing for duration 
of project

3. Increased vibrancy of 
Hambleton’s Market Towns.

1. Review and update HDC’s VMT plans and incorporate within the 
local vision for each town.

HDC
Spring 2021
Town Futures Teams, Business 
Networks, Town Councils, TICs

2. Capture and define the individual town ambitions, for example:
• Brand Bedale
• Wold Class
• Stokesley Bounce Back

HDC
Spring 2021
Town Futures Teams (Incl. Town 
Councils)

3. Deliver Covid-safe VMT roadshows. HDC
Spring/Summer 2021 and ongoing

4. Provide support to the Northallerton BID renewal process HDC
July 2021 onwards

P
age 15



10 a place to grow

4. Understanding impact of 
Covid in town centres and 
identifying key actions for 
moving forward.

1. Undertake study of Bedale, highlighting opportunities (Genecon). HDC
Jan 2021

2. Take learning from above and share across other towns in 
Hambleton.

HDC
Summer 2021

5. Restore local historic character 
and improve the public realm.

1. Complete Northallerton Connections Project. HDC

2. ID how the connections project principles can be rolled out to other 
towns across Hambleton (incl seeking funding).

HDC
Summer 2021

Supporting & growing businesses
Meets with LEP: Business and innovation

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. A strong Hambleton presence 
on the digital high street.

1. Providing support to bricks and mortar retailers to develop their 
digital retail offer.

HDC
Jan 2021 & onwards

2. Facilitating training for retailers to design and build their approach 
to delivering a digital retail experience that supports the High 
Street.

HDC
Jan 2021 & onwards

3. Identifying and sharing exemplar digital retail good practice. HDC
Jan 2021 & onwards

P
age 16



2. Access to Digital Innovation. 1. Build on C4Di Northallerton Beta Project through launch of C4Di at 
Treadmills.

HDC
Jan 2021
C4Di, CNDCL/Treadmills, 

2. Grow on Space for C4Di - linked to upper floors of Artisan Yard. If FHSF bid is successful

3. 5G Testbed

3. Shorten (develop new) supply 
chains.

1. Work with businesses to develop and identify local networks 
to support the local economy (shorten supply chains and build 
opportunity for Hambleton SMEs).

HDC
Summer 2021 onwards

2. Work with the LEP to identify circular economy opportunities that 
build local networks and supply chains.

HDC
Summer 2021 onwards

4. Planned Growth and 
Development.

1. Adoption and implementation of Local Plan. HDC
Jan/Feb 2021 onwards

2. Promotion of allocations and development opportunities, prioritised 
to maximise support for economic growth.

HDC
Jan/Feb 2021 onwards

3. Develop masterplans for key sites. HDC
Jan/Feb 2021 onwards

5. Shared knowledge. 1. Develop a Covid safe mechanism to deliver the Hambleton Business 
Conference and share ‘Doing Business through Covid and Beyond’ 
with all businesses.

HDC
Sept 2021
Hawkhills

11a place to grow

P
age 17



12 a place to grow

6. New/revised Hambleton 
Economic Strategy.

1. Review existing strategy and plans in line with analysis of Covid 
impact to businesses and local economy.

HDC
Autumn 2021

2. Revise/renew strategy and supporting plans for post-covid 
Hambleton.

Dec 2021

Enabling our people to play an active part in the economy
Meets with LEP: People & community

Outcome Needed Action Responsibility/Timeframe/Partners

1. Enabling affordable 
accommodation.

1. Using commuted sums to support affordable homes projects. HDC
Oct 2020 onwards
Broadacres, Developers, Other RPs

2. Work with Broadacres to develop Next Steps Accommodation 
Programme for supported accommodation for at risk groups.

HDC
Nov 2020 onwards
Broadacres

2. Increasing opportunities to 
develop skills and training in 
Hambleton.

1. Develop and implement E-Campus in Northallerton (Getting 
Building Fund).

HDC
Spring/Summer 2021
University of Sunderland, York College, 
LEP, CNDCL

2. Relaunch plans to develop the Construction Skills Village
• Obtain and consider expressions of interest in the scheme
• Re-engage with construction industry
• Assess viability and Council Involvement

HDC
Oct 2020 and ongoing
Skills Village Steering Group 
(Devlopers, Builders, Education)

P
age 18



13a place to grow

P
age 19



a place togrow

© Communications Unit HDC 2020

This information is available in alternative formats and languages

Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, Northallerton, North Yorkshire DL6 2UU 

01609 779977

P
age 20



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management 
 Mid-Year Review 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Quarter 2 update at 30 

September 2020 on the progress of the capital programme 2020/21 and the 
treasury management position.  A full schedule of the capital programme 2020/21 
schemes is attached at Annex A, together with the relevant update on progress of 
each scheme. 

 
1.2 Capital expenditure is intrinsically linked with treasury management as the way that 

the capital programme is funded directly effects the treasury management 
arrangements of the Council.  The majority of the Council’s capital expenditure is 
funded by grants, capital receipts, reserves and borrowing.  The use of the 
Council’s funds affects the daily treasury management cash flow position, as well as 
the requirement to invest surplus funds. 
 

2.0  Capital Programme Summary: 
 
2.1  The 2020/21 capital programme was approved by Cabinet at Quarter 1 on 

8 September 2020 at £52,233,766. 
 
2.2  At this Quarter 2 monitoring, a net decrease to the capital programme of 

£31,688,990 results in a total revised capital programme of £20,544,776. 
 
2.3  The net decrease of £31,688,990 to be approved in this report is detailed in Annex 

B and is made up of:- 
 

(a) increase in expenditure of £4,049,841 supported from Council reserves and 
borrowing; 
 

(b) decrease in expenditure of £30,623,269 mainly due to the Commercial 
Investment Strategy being suspended and £30,000,000 returned to fund; 

 
 (c)  increase in expenditure of £1,359,242 funded externally; and 

 
 (d)  decrease in expenditure of £6,474,804 due scheme rolled forward to 

2021/22. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



2.4  Table 2 below outlines the variances reported against each portfolio area. 

 

Table 2: Capital Programme Q2 2020/21 

 
2.5  To 30 September 2020 capital expenditure of £7,024,110 had been incurred or 

committed representing 34% of the revised Quarter 2 capital programme position of 
£20,544,776.  It is expected that the capital programme will come in on target at the 
end of the financial year and preparation has occurred in the first 6 months of the 
year to ensure the delivery of the capital programme in the next 6 months, hence 
the low percentage of currently incurred expenditure. 

 
2.6  The proposed changes to the Capital Programme, which require approval by this 

Cabinet, are detailed for each of the four portfolio areas, the Economic 
Development Fund and the Corporate Schemes at Annex B. 

 
3.0  Funding the Capital Programme: 
 
3.1 For 2020/21, at Quarter 2, the capital programme of £20,544,776 is being funded 

from £11,848,261 external borrowing, £5,943,188 external grants/contributions, 
£1,676,308 from Capital Receipts, £411,491 from the Computer Fund, £300,000 
from the One Off Fund, £238,022 from the Economic Development Fund, £84,701 
from revenue and £42,805 from the Repairs and Renewals Reserve. 

 
3.2 The external grant funding has increased in Quarter 2 by £1,359,242.  This is as a 

result of CIL funding for Bedale Leisure Improvement project of £206,961 and 
Thirsk and Leisure centre Improvement Project of £1,000,000.  A total of £88,287 of 
Covid-19 grant have been allocated to the All Leisure Centres – Covid 19 ventilation 
enhancement scheme of £39,000, ICT improvements of £32,237 and £17,050 for 
Idox upgrade.  In addition, ERDF grant funding of £25,622 for the Northallerton 
Sports Village has been allocated along with £133,800 for the Heritage Action Zone 
projects schemes.  The Disable Facilities Grant has reduced by £95,428 to fund 
revenue expenditure. 

 

  Portfolio 
Current 

Approved 
Expenditure 

Revised 
Expenditure 

Q2 

Variance 
Increase/ 

(decrease) 

Request 
for 

additional 
funding  

Funding no 
longer 

required 

External 
Funding 

 
Schemes 

re-profiled 
to future 

years  

  £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Leisure & 
Communities 

1,656,904 3,063,193 1,406,289 150,700 (15,994) 1,271,583 - 

Environment 334,303 299,303 (35,000) - (35,000) - - 

Economy & 
Planning 

4,778,411 4,345,073 (433,338) 50,000 (521,710) 38,372 - 

Finance & 
Commercial  

457,556 460,778 3,222 11,500 (50,565) 49,287 (7,000) 

Economic 
Development 
Fund 

238,022 238,022 - - - - - 

Corporate 
Schemes 

44,768,570 12,138,407 (32,630,163) 3,837,641 (30,000,000) - (6,467,804) 

Total 52,233,766 20,544,776 (31,688,990) 4,049,841 (30,623,269) 1,359,242 (6,474,804) 

Page 22



3.3 The capital receipts estimated to be received during 2020/21 is £237,500. 
 
3.4 Therefore at year end in accordance with accounting practice the capital 

programme will be financed using all available in year funding prior to using the 
Council’s capital reserves.  At Quarter 2 it is estimated that £1,438,808 of reserve 
funding will be used. 

 
3.5 The overall funding position continues to be closely monitored to ensure the overall 

capital programme remains affordable and sustainable over the 10 year approved 
capital plan. 

 
3.6 It should be noted that the report reflects the capital programme position as if 

approval has been agreed by Cabinet.  This is detailed in the recommendations 
below. 

 
4.0  Treasury Management Position 2020/21: 
 
4.1 The Treasury Management review at Quarter 2 2020/21 is attached at Annex C and 

provides Members with an update on the:  
 
 (a) treasury management position  
 (b) economy and interest rates  
 (c) investment policy  
 (d) investment performance  
 (e) borrowing position  
 (f) compliance with prudential and treasury indicators  
 
4.2  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 which details 

the Council’s approach to treasury management was approved by this Council on 
25 February 2020.  The Authorised Borrowing limit, Capital Financing Requirement 
and other Prudential and Treasury indicators have been reviewed in light of the 
suspension of the Commercial Investment Strategy by Council September 2020 and 
this is reflected in Annex C and E.  There has been a reduction in the Authorised 
Borrowing Limit from £90,000,000 to £62,500,000; approval is sought in this report 
for the reduction in the revised Authorised Borrowing limit. 

 
4.3  The investment position at Quarter 2, 30 September 2020 is a balance of 

£12,530,000 with an average interest rate return of 0.  21% for the year to date and 
0.  08% for Quarter 2.  The interest rates currently available to invest are very low 
and the amount of interest estimated to be earned for 2020/21 is £10,500 lower 
than budgeted and is to be reported at Quarter 2 Revenue Monitoring Report.  This 
is all invested in short term commodities for liquidity purposes due to the numerous 
capital projects that are currently ongoing within the Council.  £5,630,000 is 
invested in Money Market Funds which has instant access and £6,900,000 is 
invested in an instant access bank account.  The balance has been divided into 
these commodities so that the best yield is obtained whilst ensuring the money is 
available by the Council when required. 

 
  

Page 23



4.4  The total borrowing by the Council with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is 
now £27,700,000 taken in previous financial years over seven loans with varying 
maturity dates.  Further borrowing is predicted in 2020/21 to carry out the Council’s 
capital programme. 

 
4.5  At Quarter 2 the Council had given a total of £35,000,000 of loans to a Local 

Housing Association.  This has been made up of ten individual loans with varying 
maturity dates and fulfils the agreement taken out with the Housing Association.  
The first maturity date is in Quarter 3 on 8 October 2020 for £1,000,000.  It is not 
anticipated that the Housing Association will renew the loan. 

 
4.6  The interest received from the loans to the local Housing Association is not included 

in this section of the report because the loan is classed as capital expenditure under 
economic development to support local businesses.  However, the interest earned 
in the second quarter from the £35,000,000 loaned to the Local Housing association 
is £368,690.  This totals £737,380 to date in 2020/21.  At the beginning of October 
2020 £1m loan invested with the Housing association matured and under the legal 
agreement this was returned to the Council.  It will, therefore be reported in the 
Quarter 2 Revenue Monitoring Report that £16,110 loss of income will occur 
resulting in a total budget for 2020/21 of £1,458,650.  A further review of the 
investment opportunities with the local Housing Association will be considered in the 
coming months. 

 
4.7  The Council has operated within the treasury and prudential indicators set out at 

Annex E.  The approved limits were not breached during Quarter 2 in 2020/21. 
 
4.8 Annex F, in line with good practice on openness and transparency, explains the 

Council’s relationship with its third party companies; it details the financial position 
of the Joint Venture Company and comment on the suspended Commercial 
Investment strategy approved by Council in September 2020. 

 
5.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
5.1  All schemes approved as part of the capital programme have been evaluated 

against key corporate priorities.  Schemes are only undertaken and approved by 
Cabinet in accordance with the Council Plan and supporting project initiation 
documentation. 

 
5.2  Treasury Management supports all aspects of the Council’s priorities as the income 

earned on investments or increased costs on interest paid on borrowing contributes 
to the Council’s funding position which supports Council services. 

 
6.0 Risk Assessment 
 
6.1  There are no risks associated with approving this report.  However, the risks 

associated with not receiving regular monitoring reports are potentially more 
serious. 

 
7.0  Financial Implications 
 
7.1  The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 

Page 24



 
8.0  Legal Implications 
 
8.1  Treasury Management activities and the Capital programme conform to the Local 

Government Act 2003 and the Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 

 
9.0  Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
9.1  The capital programme seeks to address key equality issues that affect the Council 

and the public.  The main scheme that specifically addressed equalities in the 
second Quarter of 2020/21 is the Disabled Facilities grant scheme. 

 
10.0  Recommendations 
 
10.1  That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:-  
 
 (1)  the net decrease of £31,688,990 in the capital programme to £20,544,776 

and all expenditure movements as detailed in Annex B and also in the capital 
programme attached at Annex A of the report;  

 
 (2)  the increase of capital expenditure of £5,515,953 funded as follows: 

£3,687,641 from borrowing, £1,454,670 is from external grants/contributions, 
£187,142 is funded from capital, £150,000 from the One Off fund, £25,000 
from Revenue Contributions receipts and £11,500 from Computer Fund;  

 
 (3) the funding allocation to the capital programme as detailed in paragraph 3.  1 

and 3.2 of the report;  
 
 (4) the reduction in the Affordable Borrowing Limit to £62,500,000 as detailed in 

paragraph 4.2; 
 
 (5) the treasury management and prudential indicators at Annex E of the report 

have been revised in light of the changes in the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement in paragraph 4.2; and  

 
 (5)  to note the position of the Council’s third party companies at Annex F of the 

report. 
 
Louise Branford-White  
Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer)  
 
Background papers:  Capital programme working papers Q2  
     Treasury management working papers Q2  
Author ref:    SC  
Contact:    Saskia Calton  
     Corporate Finance Manager  
     Direct Line No 01609 767226 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £  £ £  £ 

Leisure & Communities

Cllr Fortune 

Portfolio Holder for 

Leisure

CT NLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchangers 1 & 2 20,000                     20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000                 -                    20,000 -                  Scheme is progressing and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

CT NLC - Internal Painting 1,131                      1,131 1,131 1,131 1,131                   1,131                1,131 -                  Scheme completed.

DA NLC - Spinning Bikes 14,000                    14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000                 -                    14,000 -                  Scheme is potentially progressing at Quarter 3. 

DA NLC - Pool Flume Improvements 12,935                    12,935 12,222 12,222 12,222                 12,222              12,222 -                  Scheme is completed.

 DA NLC - Cold Water Storage Tank 20,000                     20,000                   20,000 20,000 20,000                 -                    20,000 -                  Scheme is progressing and expected to be completed by March 2021.

 DA NLC - Staircases to Flume & Studio Repairs 16,000                     16,000                   16,000 16,000 16,000                 2,595                16,000 -                  Scheme is progressing and and estimated to be completed in Quarter 3.

DA SLC - Underwater Detection System 58,979                    58,979                   58,979 58,979 58,979                 -                    58,979 -                  Scheme completed and awating invoices.

DA SLC - Changing Room Air Handling Unit 34,775                    34,775                   34,775 30,000 64,775 64,775                 -                    64,775 (30,000) Request of £30,000 for additional work identified during scheme design. 

DA SLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchangers & Boiler Shunt Pump 19,000                     19,000                   19,000 19,000 19,000                 -                    19,000 -                  Scheme under development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

DA SLC - Leisure Improvement scheme 67,119                    67,119                   67,119 67,119 67,119                 10,550              67,119 -                  Scheme is in progress and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

DA SLC - Upgrade of Sauna Area 15,000                     15,000                   15,000 (15,000) -                        -                       -                    -                        15,000            
Request of £15,000 to be transfer to the BLC - upgrade  of Sauna scheme 

instead of SLC - Upgrade of Sauna scheme.

DA BLC - Upgrade of Sauna Area -                        0 15,000 15,000 15,000                 -                    15,000                  (15,000)
Request of £15,000 to be transfer from the SLC - Upgrade of Sauna scheme 

to the BLC - upgrade of Sauna scheme.

DA BLC - Gym Floor 6,000                      6,000                     6,000 (6,000) -                        -                       -                        6,000              Scheme is not progressing and £6,000 to be returned to fund.

DA BLC - Fitness Suite A/C Indoor Unit 13,000                     13,000                   13,000 13,000                   13,000.00            13,000                  -                  Scheme is on hold and will be reviewed in Quarter 4.

DA BLC - Shower Areas 18,000                     18,000                   18,000 18,000 18,000                 3,323                18,000                  -                  
Scheme is under development and is estimated to be delivered by March 

2021.

CW Bedale Leisure Centre - Improvement Project -                        -                        314,000 314,000 206,961 107,039               314,000                (314,000)
Request of £314,000 for the Bedale leisure centre improvement scheme. 

Funding of £206,961 allocated from Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

DA T&SLC - Plant Valves 28,000                    28,000                   28,000 (28,000) -                        -                       -                        28,000            Scheme is not progressing and £28,000 to be returned to fund.

CW T&SLC - Feasibility Study 53,788                    53,788                   53,788 53,788 53,788                 114,530            53,788 -                  
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by December 

2020.

CW T&SLC - Improvement Project -                        -                        1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -                       1,000,000 (1,000,000)

Request of £1,000,000 for the Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre 

Improvement project. Funding of £1,000,000 allocated from Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

DA All Leisure Centres - Pool Plant Equipment Replacement 7,137                      7,137                     7,137 103 7,240 7,240                   7,240                7,240 (103) Scheme is completed and £103 is requested to cover a slight overspend.

DA All Leisure Centres - Energy Management 10,000                    10,000                   10,000 (10,000) -                        -                       -                    -                        10,000            Scheme is not progressing and £10,000 to be returned to fund.

P
age 27



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

DA All Leisure Centres - Covid-19 Ventilation enhancements -                        39,000 39,000                   39,000 -                       -                    39,000 (39,000)

Request of £39,000 to enable enhancement to ventilation systems for all 

leisure centres. Government Covid-19 grant of £39,000 is allocated to fund 

this scheme.

LW Thirsk & Sowerby Sports Village 399,414                  399,414                 436,662 436,662 375,662 61,000                 415,628            436,662 -                  Scheme is progressing.

LW Northallerton Sports Village -                        15,000                   25,622                   40,622 15,000             25,622 -                       5,032                40,622 (25,622)

Request of £25,622 which is to be funded by £7,500 from ERDF and £18,122 

S106 funding. Application of ERDF funding of £503,000 has been successful 

and work on Phase 1 is commencing. Procurement of design team in order 

to prepare the capital works tender is underway.  Work due to start on site 

June 2021.

Cllr Sanderson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Governance

CT Public lighting replacement 36,000                     (6,548) 29,452 29,452 29,452 29,452                 16,786              29,452 -                  Scheme is in progress and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

CT LED Lantern Replacement Scheme 9,854 9,854 9,854 9,854 9,854 -                       -                    9,854 -                  Scheme completed and awaiting final invoices.

CT Air Conditioning - Legislation requirement 3,803                      3,803 3,803 3,803 3,803                   -                    3,803 -                  Scheme is in progress and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

CT Forum Atrium - Capital Repairs 10,000                    10,000 10,000 (10,000) -                        -                       -                        10,000            
Request of £10,000 to be moved to Car Park Reinstatement to undertake 

works to the Forum car park.

CT Facilities Lightening Protection 11,442                    11,442 11,442 (11,442) -                        -                       -                    -                        11,442            
Scheme is not progressing and it is requested that £11,442 is transferred to 

the Civic Centre Accommodation project.

CT Civic Centre - Accommodation 41,597                    41,597 41,597 16,166 57,763 57,763                 49,513              57,763 (16,166)
Request of £16,166 to be transferred from Facilities Lightning Protection 

scheme and the Civic Centre Roof Verges scheme to cover overspend. 

CT Civic Centre - Fire Alarm System 45,000                     45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000                 -                    45,000 -                  
Scheme is under review, assessment of condition of existing system and 

option to enhance. 

CT Civic Centre - Roof Verges 15,000                     15,000 15,000 (15,000) -                        -                       -                    -                        15,000            
Request of £4,724 to be transferred to the Civic Centre Accommodation 

scheme to cover overspend and £10,276 to be returned to fund.

CT Energy Efficiency - Market Assessment 8,160                      8,160 8,160 (8,160) -                        -                       -                    -                        8,160              Scheme is not progressing and £8,160 to be returned to fund.

CT Car Park Reinstatements 99,256                    99,256 99,256 45,000 144,256 144,256               1,615                144,256 (45,000)
Request of £45,000 from Northallerton Depot  - Access Road Surfacing 

scheme and £10,000 from Forum - Capital Repairs scheme.

CT Car Park Improvement Scheme 509,737                  509,737 509,737 509,737 509,737               154,099            509,737 -                  
Scheme is progressing, some elements delayed due to Covid-19. Scheme is 

expected to be completed by March 2021.

CT Adoptions - Electric Bollards - Thirsk & Northallerton 7,790                      7,790 7,790 25,000 32,790 32,790                 -                    32,790 (25,000) Request of £25,000 for additional installation costs. 

Total Scheme Value Leisure & Communities 217,000                   1,388,369               1,605,369              1,656,904              1,406,289              3,063,193              400,516           1,271,583               1,391,094            794,264            3,063,193             (1,406,289)

P
age 28



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

Cllr Watson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Environmental 

Health, Waste and 

Recycling Environment

 GB  Purchase of bins and boxes for refuse and recycling 60,000                     4,317                      64,317                   64,317 64,317 10,000 54,317                 52,893              64,317 -                  On target to spend all budget this year

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot Improvement Scheme 92,294                    92,294                   92,294 92,294 92,294                 31,583              92,294 -                  
The original scheme is on hold and the the project is to be used to manage 

the asbestoes on site

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot - Access Road Resurfacing 35,000                     35,000                   35,000 (35,000) -                        -                       -                    -                        35,000            Request of £35,000 to be moved to Car Park Reinstatement scheme.

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot External Works 4,917                      4,917                     4,917 4,917 4,917                   -                    4,917 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSe/GB Fly Tipping Project Equipment Surveillance 17,885                    17,885                   17,885 17,885 17,885                 -                    17,885 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSe/GB WASS - Digital Depot System 96,400                    96,400                   96,400 96,400 96,400                 81,425              96,400 -                  Scheme is progressing and is estimated to be implemeneted by March 2021.

SSe/GB Waste and Street Scene - Telematics 12,050                    12,050                   12,050 12,050 12,050                 12,050 -                  
Scheme is progressing to testing stage and estimated to be completed 

before March 2021.

SSe/GB Dash Camera Small Fleet 11,440                    11,440                   11,440 11,440 11,440                 11,440 -                  Scheme is completed and final invoices to be received.

Total Scheme Value Environment 95,000                     239,303                  334,303                 334,303                 (35,000) 299,303                 10,000             -                         289,303               165,901            299,303                35,000            

Economy & Planning

Cllr Sanderson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Governance

CT Bedale Gateway Car Park 521,710                  521,710 521,710 (521,710) -                        -                       -                    -                        521,710          Scheme is no longer progressing and £521,710 is to be returned to fund.

EB/SSw Bedale Bridge and Cycle Scheme 491,333                  491,333 491,333 491,333 439,128 52,205                 11,644              491,333 -                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

Cllr Wilkinson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic 

Development & 

Finance

JT Workspaces Health and Safety Aspects 3,151                      3,151 3,151 3,151 3,151                   1,557                3,151 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

JT Workspaces - Electrical Distribution Replacement 30,000                     30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000                 30,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

JT Workspace Renewal Scheme 1,570                      1,570 1,570 1,570 1,570                   1,570 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

JT Workspaces - Roller Shutter Doors 8,000                       8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000                   8,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

JT Workspaces - Lift Works (LOLER) 6,000                      6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000                   6,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

JT Workspaces - Air Con Refurbishments 6,000                      6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000                   6,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSw Northallerton Connections 2,523,688               2,523,688              2,523,688 2,523,688 2,523,688 -                       807,652            2,523,688 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSw North Northallerton Infrastructure scheme -                          -                        618,024 618,024 618,024 -                       -                    618,024 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSw Heritage Action Zone schemes -                          -                        -                        133,800 133,800 133,800 -                       -                    133,800 (133,800)
Request of £133,800 for Heritage Action Zone schemes which are to be 

funded from grant allocation from Heritage England

P
age 29



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

SSw Dalton Bridge Voluntary Contribution Business 6,491                      6,491 6,491 6,491 6,491                   6,491 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

Cllr Webster 

Portfolio Holder for 

Planning

SWT Disabled Facilities Grant 400,000                   85,310                    485,310 562,444 (45,428) 517,016 562,444 (95,428) 50,000                 113,235            517,016 45,428            
Request of £50,000 to fund additional application along with £95,428 to be 

transferred to revenue to support the delivery of the scheme.

Total Scheme Value Economy & Planning 438,000                   3,645,253               4,083,253              4,778,411              (433,338) 4,345,073              4,143,284        38,372 163,417               934,089            4,345,073             433,338          

 

P
age 30



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

Finance & Commercial

Cllr Sanderson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Governance

JP ICT Improvements 2020/21 84,830                     75,055                    159,885 159,885 (26,400) 133,485 133,485               11,055              133,485 26,400            Request of £26,400 to be transferred to Computer fund revenue.

JP ICT Improvements 2020/21 - Covid-19 -                          -                        -                        32,237 32,237 32,237 32,237              32,237 (32,237)

Request of £32,237 to enable ICT homeworking for Hambleton District 

Council employees. Government Covid-19 grant of £32,237 is allocated to 

fund this scheme.

IG ICT - Civica Estore and Icon Upgrade V17.3/v18 54,760                    54,760 54,760 54,760 54,760                 54,760 -                  Business Case to be reviewed during Quarter 3.

SC ICT - Finance System 50,008                    50,008 50,008 11,500 61,508 61,508                 59,087              61,508 (11,500)

Request of £11,500 for additional archiving cost for the old finance system. 

The new system live 1st April with archive system migration to be completed 

Quarter 3.

SG Housing Benefits - Electronic Forms & CRM Portal 20,000                    20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000                 20,000 -                  Project Ongoing with further spend expected Quarter 3

SH CRM/Mitel Telephony Integration 7,000                      7,000 7,000 (7,000) -                        -                       -                        7,000              Request of £7,000 to be rolled forward to 2021/22.

SH Web Accessibility Upgrade. 79,770                    79,770 79,770 79,770 79,770                 22,200              79,770 -                  Scheme underway and completion expected Quarter 3.

JP ICT Customer Excellence 4,698                      4,698 4,698 4,698 4,698                   4,698 -                  Project Ongoing with futher spend expected Quarter 3

JP ICT Council Chamber 3,065                      3,065 3,065 3,065 3,065                   1,963                3,065 -                  Project Ongoing with futher spend expected Quarter 3

SG ICT - Northgate System Upgrade 1,000                      1,000 1,000 (165) 835 835                      835                   835 165                 
Scheme completed Quarter 2, small underspend of £165 to be returned to 

fund.

CT ICT - Public Lighting software upgrade 24,000                     24,000 24,000 (24,000) -                        -                       -                        24,000            Scheme is not progressing and £24,000 is to be returned to fund.

Cllr Webster 

Portfolio Holder for 

Planning

TW/PJ Idox Software upgrade -                          -                        17,050 17,050 -                  17,050 -                       -                    17,050 (17,050)
Request of £17,050 to enable upgrade of Idox Software system migration. 

Government Covid-19 grant of £17,050 is allocated to fund this scheme.

AR DM - Development Management Information System (MIS) 48,200                    48,200 48,200 48,200 48,200                 48,200 -                  Project currently under review.

Cllr Watson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Environmental 

Health, Waste and 

Recycling

VF EHO - Management Information System (MIS) 5,170                      5,170 5,170 5,170 5,170                   4,745                5,170 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

Total Scheme Value Finance & Commercial 108,830                   348,726                  457,556                 457,556                 3,222 460,778                 -                  49,287                    411,491               132,122            460,778                (3,222)

Cllr Wilkinson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic 

Development & 

Finance

Economic Development Fund

SSw Dalton Bridge EDF Improvement Infrastructure 14,057                    14,057 14,057 14,057 14,057                 14,057 -                  Scheme will be reviewed after Dalton Bridge Phase 2 has been completed.

SSw Industrial Estates/Employment land 74,965                    74,965 74,965 74,965 74,965                 4,355                74,965 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSw Footfall Counters 10,000                    10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000                   -                    5,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

SSw Skills Village -                          -                        84,000 84,000 84,000                 -                    84,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

P
age 31



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21

Budget Approved 

at                          

Qtr 1

Qtr2 Qtr2 + 2020/21
Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 2

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure 

April - 

September 

2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

Explanation

SSw Industrial Park Review 484,436                   60,000                    544,436 60,000 60,000 60,000                 60,000 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

Total Scheme Value EDF 484,436                   159,022                  643,458                 238,022                 -                        238,022                 -                  -                         238,022               4,355                238,022                -                  

Cllr Wilkinson 

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic 

Development & 

Finance

Corporate Schemes

SSw Dalton Bridge BID Payment 31,735 31,735 31,735 31,735 31,735                 31,735 -                  Scheme will be reviewed after Dalton Bridge Phase 2 has been completed.

SSw Dalton Bridge Phase 2 -                          -                        150,000 150,000 300,000 300,000               300,000 (150,000)
Request of additional £150,000 to support North Yorkshire County Council 

remedial works to the Dalton Bridge alleviation scheme. 

SSw Skills Village -                          -                        33,210 33,210 33,210                 33,210 -                  Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by March 2021.

HH
Commercial Investment Property portfolio

30,000,000             30,000,000 30,000,000 (30,000,000) -                        -                  -                         -                       -                        30,000,000     
Request of £30,000,000 to be returned to fund since scheme has been 

suspended.

HH Treadmills Phase 1 4,799,451               4,799,451 4,799,451 4,799,451 -                  -                         4,799,451            4,204,272         4,799,451 -                  Scheme is completed and final invoices to be received.

HH Treadmills Phase 2 9,612,700                (209,026) 9,403,674 9,403,674 (6,467,804) 2,935,870 -                  -                         2,935,870            747,937            2,935,870 6,467,804       
Request of £6,467,804 to be rolled forward to 2021/22. Phase 2a of the 

project is due to be completed at Quarter 4 2020/21.

HH Crematorium 211,868                  211,868 350,500 3,687,641 4,038,141 -                  -                         4,038,141            41,171              4,038,141 (3,687,641)

Request of £3,687,641 for the Crematorium scheme with constructions due 

to commence in November 2020.

Total Scheme Value Corporate Schemes 9,612,700                34,834,028             44,446,728            44,768,570            (32,630,163) 12,138,407            -                  -                         12,138,407          4,993,380         12,138,407           32,630,163     

Total Capital Programme 2020/21 10,955,966 40,614,701 51,570,667 52,233,766 (31,688,990) 20,544,776 4,553,800 1,359,242 14,631,734 7,024,110         20,544,776 31,688,990     

P
age 32



Annex B  
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME:  
 
1.1  The proposed changes to the capital programme, detailed for each of the portfolio 

areas are listed below:  
 
1.2  Leisure and Communities – 18 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 2:  
 

(a) Stokesley Leisure Centre – Changing Room Air Handling Unit – Request of 
£30,000 for additional work identified during scheme design. 
 

(b) Stokesley Leisure Centre - Request of £15,000 to be transfer to the BLC - 
upgrade of Sauna scheme instead of SLC - Upgrade of Sauna scheme. 
 

(c) Bedale Leisure Centre - Request of £15,000 to be transfer from the SLC - 
Upgrade of Sauna scheme to the BLC - upgrade of Sauna scheme.  
 

(d) Bedale Leisure Centre - Scheme is not progressing and £6,000 to be 
returned to fund. 
 

(e) Bedale Leisure Improvement Project - Request of £314,000 for the Bedale 
Leisure Centre improvement scheme. Funding of £206,961 allocated from 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 

(f) Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre - Plant Valves - Scheme is not 
progressing and £28,000 to be returned to fund. 
 

(g) Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre – Improvement Project - Request of 
£1,000,000 for the Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre Improvement project. 
Funding of £1,000,000 allocated from Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  
 

(h) All Leisure Centres - Pool Plant Equipment Replacement - Scheme is 
completed and £103 is requested to cover a slight overspend. 
 

(i) All Leisure Centres - Energy Management - Scheme is not progressing and 
£10,000 to be returned to fund. 
 

(j) All Leisure Centres - Covid-19 Ventilation enhancements - Request of 
£39,000 to enable enhancement to ventilation systems for all leisure centres. 
Government Covid-19 grant of £39,000 is allocated to fund this scheme. 
 

(k) Northallerton Sports village - Request of £25,622 which is to be funded by 
£7,500 from ERDF and £18,122 S106 funding. Application of ERDF funding 
of £503,000 has been successful and work on Phase 1 is commencing. 
Procurement of design team in order to prepare the capital works tender is 
underway.  Work due to start on site June 2021. 
 

(l) Forum Atrium - Capital Repairs - Request of £10,000 to be moved to Car 
Park Reinstatement to undertake works to the Forum car park. 
 

  

Page 33



(m) Facilities Lightening Protection - Scheme is not progressing and it is 
requested that £11,442 is transferred to the Civic Centre Accommodation 
project. 
 

(n) Civic Centre – Accommodation - Request of £16,166 to be transferred from 
Facilities Lightning Protection scheme and the Civic Centre Roof Verges 
scheme to cover overspend.  
 

(o) Civic Centre - Roof Verges - Request of £4,724 to be transferred to the Civic 
Centre Accommodation scheme to cover overspend and £10,276 to be 
returned to fund. 
 

(p) Energy Efficiency - Market Assessment - Scheme is not progressing and 
£8,160 to be returned to fund. 
 

(q) Car Park Reinstatements - Request of £45,000 from Northallerton Depot - 
Access Road Surfacing scheme and £10,000 from Forum - Capital Repairs 
scheme. 
 

(r) Adoptions - Electric Bollards - Thirsk & Northallerton - Request of £25,000 for 
additional installation costs.  
 

1.3  Environment – 1 scheme affect the capital programme at Quarter 2:  
 

a) Northallerton Depot - Access Road Resurfacing - Request of £35,000 to be 
moved to Car Park Reinstatement scheme. 

 
1.4  Economy and Planning – 3 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 2:  
 

a) Bedale Gateway Car Park - Scheme is no longer progressing and £521,710 

is to be returned to fund. 

 

b) Heritage Action Zone schemes - Request of £133,800 for Heritage Action 

Zone schemes which are to be funded from grant allocation from Heritage 

England 

(c)  Disabled Facilities Grants – Request of £50,000 to fund additional application 

along with £95,428 to be transferred to revenue to support the delivery of the 

scheme. 

 
1.5  Finance and Commercial - 7 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 2:  
 

(a) ICT Improvements 2020/21 – request for £26,400 to be transferred to 
Computer fund revenue.  
 

 
  

Page 34



(b) ICT Improvements 2020/21 COVID-19 – Request of £32,237 to enable ICT 
homeworking for Hambleton District Council employees. Government Covid-
19 grant of £32,237 is allocated to fund this scheme. 
 

(c) ICT - Finance System - Request of £11,500 for additional archiving cost for 
the old finance system. The new system live 1st April with archive system 
migration to be completed Quarter 3. 
 

(d) CRM/Mitel Telephony Integration - Request of £7,000 to be rolled forward to 
2021/22. 
 

(e) ICT - Northgate System Upgrade - Scheme completed Quarter 2, small 
underspend of £165 to be returned to fund. 

 
(f) ICT - Public Lighting software upgrade - Scheme is not progressing and 

£24,000 is to be returned to fund. 
 

(g) Idox Software upgrade - Request of £17,050 to enable upgrade of Idox 
Software system migration. Government Covid-19 grant of £17,050 is 
allocated to fund this scheme. 
 

1.6  Corporate Schemes – 4 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 2:  
 

(a) Dalton Bridge Phase 2 – request of additional £150,000 to support North 
Yorkshire County Council remedial works to the Dalton Bridge alleviation 
scheme.  
 

(b) Commercial Investment Property Portfolio – request of £30,000,000 to be 
returned to fund since scheme has been suspended. 

 

(c) Treadmills Phase 2 – Request of £6,467,804 to be rolled forward to 2021/22. 
Phase 2a of the project is due to be completed at Quarter 4 2020/21. 
 

(d) Crematorium – Request of £3,687,641 for the Crematorium scheme with 
constructions due to commence in November 2020. 

 
 

1.7 Capital schemes are monitored on a monthly basis and reported to Cabinet 
quarterly, ensuring that the majority of schemes are held within budget or reported 
to Council at the earliest opportunity. 

  
1.8  New Schemes added to the capital programme all have supporting Project Initiation 

Documentation to ensure projects are affordable, sustainable and prudent. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX C 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION 2020/21 – MID YEAR REVIEW &  
QUARTER 2 UPDATE 

 
1.0 LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT 
 
1.1 In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, 

(CIPFA), issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes.  As from 
2020/21, all local authorities have been required to prepare a Capital Strategy 
which is intended to provide the following:- 

 

 a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services 

 an overview of how associated risk is managed 

 the implications for future financial sustainability 
  
1.2 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during 

the year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management 
operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being 
invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering optimising investment return. 

 
1.3 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 

the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the 
Council can meet its capital spending operations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.4 Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, 
its banking, money market transactions and capital market transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
1.5 This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management (revised 2017). 

 
 The primary requirements of the Code are as follows: 
 

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement 
which sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury 
management activities. 
 

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set 
out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies 
and objectives. 
 

Page 37



3. Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report 
and an Annual Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the 
previous year. 
 

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and 
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the 
execution and administration of treasury management decisions. 
 

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management 
strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the 
delegated body is Scrutiny committee:  

 
 This mid-year report therefore ensures this Council is implementing best practice 

in accordance with the code and covers the following: 
 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy; 

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the Capital Strategy, and 
prudential indicators; 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2020/21; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21. 
 
1.6 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 

scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities.  This Mid-Year report 
therefore updates Members on the current Treasury Management position. 

 
1.7 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was approved 

by this Council on 25 February 2020, there has been a reduction in the Authorised 
Borrowing Limit in 2020/21 from £90,000,000 to £62,500,000 due to the 
suspension of the Commercialisation Investment Strategy approved by council in 
September 2020.  This reduced the Authorised Borrowing limit by £30,000,000 but 
it has increased with additions to the capital programme namely Thirsk and 
Sowerby Leisure Centre and the Crematorium.  Approval is sought in this report 
for the reduction in the revised Authorised Borrowing limit. 

 
1.8 The Council’s capital expenditure plans at Quarter 2 are financed by external 

grants or contributions, capital receipts received in the year, capital reserves or 
borrowing. 

 
1.9 The Council continues to have an underlying need to borrow for capital purposes 

and has total external borrowing of £27,700,000 with the Public Works Loan 
Board.  

 
1.10 The capital financing requirement for 2020/21 is set at £53,735,048.  This is the 

Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes and has reduced in line 
with the suspension of the Commercial Investment Strategy.  If the Capital 
Financing Requirement is positive the Council may borrow from the Public Works 

Page 38



Loan Board or the market (external borrowing) or from internal balances on a 
temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance of external and internal 
borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  The capital expenditure of the 
Council is mainly supported by grants, contributions, reserves and borrowing.   

 
1.11  The following table shows the treasury management position as at 30 September 

2020:- 
 

  30 Sept 
2
0 

Rate 

  £000’s % 

Capital Financing  
Requirement 

53,735  

Borrowing 27,700 2.21 

Investments 12,530 0.21 

Table 1: Borrowing and Investment position at 30 September 2020 

 

2.0 THE ECONOMY, INTEREST RATES AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY: 

 
2.1 The economic background and interest rate forecast, which sets the environment 

in which the Council’s treasury management operates, is attached at Annex D. 
 
3.0 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2020/21 – QUARTER 2: 
 
3.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by the 

Department for Communities and Local Government guidance, which was 
implemented in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 
2020/21, and includes the Annual Investment Strategy approved by Cabinet on 11 
February 2020.  It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being: 

 Security of capital; 

 Liquidity; 

 Yield 
 
3.2 The Council’s priority is the security of its surplus funds when investing with 

financial institutions.  However, the Council will always aim to achieve the optimum 
return (yield) on investments in line with its risk appetite and which is 
commensurate with proper levels of liquidity and security. In the current economic 
climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash 
flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months.  
Investment are placed with highly credit rated financial institutions, using the 
Council’s treasury Management advisers – Link - suggested creditworthiness 
approach including sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay 
information provided by Link. 

 
3.3 As shown by the interest rate forecasts in Annex D, it is now impossible to earn 

the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all investment 
rates are barely above zero now that Bank Rate is at 0.10%, while some entities, 
including more recently the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF), 
are offering negative rates of return in some shorter time periods. Given this risk 
environment and the fact that increases in Bank Rate are unlikely to occur before 

Page 39



the end of the current forecast horizon of 31st March 2023, investment returns are 
expected to remain low.  

 
3.4 Negative investment rates - while the Bank of England has said that it is unlikely to 

introduce a negative Bank Rate, at least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit 
accounts are already offering negative rates for shorter periods.  As part of the 
response to the pandemic and lockdown, the Bank and the Government have 
provided financial markets and businesses with plentiful access to credit, either 
directly or through commercial banks.  In addition, the Government has provided 
large sums of grants to local authorities to help deal with the Covid crisis; this has 
caused some local authorities to have sudden large increases in investment 
balances searching for an investment home, some of which was only very short-
term until those sums were able to be passed on.   

 
3.5 As for money market funds (MMFs), yields have continued to drift lower. Some 

managers have suggested that they might resort to trimming fee levels to ensure 
that net yields for investors remain in positive territory where possible and 
practical. Investor cash flow uncertainty, and the need to maintain liquidity in these 
unprecedented times, has meant there is a glut of money swilling around at the 
very short end of the market. This has seen a number of market operators, now 
including the DMADF, offer nil or negative rates for very short term maturities. This 
is not universal, and MMFs are still offering a marginally positive return, as are a 
number of financial institutions.  

 
3.6 The Council has experienced higher levels of surplus cash due to the COVID-19 

grants and low interest rates on the available call accounts and Money Market 
Funds with the lowest rate being 0% and the highest rate being 0.045%. 

 
3.7 Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the 

surge in the levels of cash seeking a short-term home at a time when many local 
authorities are probably having difficulties over accurately forecasting when 
disbursements of funds received will occur or when further large receipts will be 
received from the Government. 

 
3.8 Investments held by the Council – The Council held £12,530,000 of investments 

as at 30 September 2020 and the investment portfolio yield for the first 6 months 
of the year is 0.21%.  A full list of investments held as at 30 September 2020 can 
be seen in the table below:- 

Counterparty Type of Investment Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Federated  Money Market Fund 0.029% £5,630,000 

Handelsbanken Call Account 0.045% £6,900,000 

TOTAL   £12,530,000 

 

3.9 The average level of funds available for investment purposes during Quarter 2 – 
30 September 2020 - was £19,356,413.  The level of funds available was mainly 
dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of grants and progress on 

the Capital Programme.   

Page 40



3.10 The table below shows that the Council monitors its cash flow investments during 
Quarter 2 against the 7 day rate. The Council outperformed the 7 day benchmark 
by 0.14%. 

 

Benchmark 
Benchmark 

Return 
Council 

Performance 
Investment Interest 

Earned 

7 day  -0.06% 0.08% £4,143 

Table 2: Investment performance for Quarter 2 at 30 September 2020 
 
 

3.11 The table shows that the Council monitors its Quarter 2 cash flow investments 
against the 7 day rate. The Council outperformed the 7 day benchmark by 0.14%. 
The current 7 day benchmark return shows a negative amount due to the 7 day 
benchmark being calculated using the London Inter-Bank Bid (LIBID) rate which is 
linked to the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) figure. The Bank of England 
Base Rate is currently just 0.1%, which means the LIBOR rate will be a similar 
rate, if not lower given the large amount of liquidity in the very short end of the 
market. Therefore, this effects the LIBID rates as they are always lower than the 
LIBOR rate so at the very short end of the curve the LIBID 7 day benchmark is a 
negative figure. 

  
3.12 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 was approved at £35,000.  

In Quarter 2 monitoring it has been reported that the income is estimated to be 
£24,500, a decrease of £10,500 due to the extremely low interest rates available 
for the Council to invest any surplus cash.  This will be closely monitored 
throughout the year. 

 
3.13   Officers can confirm that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy 

were not breached during quarter ended 30 September 2020.  
 
4.0 BORROWING 2020/21 – MID YEAR REVIEW & QUARTER 2 UPDATE 
 
4.1 Due to the overall financial position and the underlying need to borrow for capital 

purposes (the Capital Financing Requirement – CFR) there has been no additional 
borrowing during Quarter 2. It is anticipated that there will be further borrowing in 
2020/21 in preparation of the large Capital Programme.  The Council currently has 
seven loans to the value of £27,700,000 of long term borrowing with the Public 
Works Loan Board (PWLB).  These can be seen in the table below:- 

 

Start Date End Date No of Years Rate Amount 

05/09/16 05/09/21 5 1.05 £1,200,000 

07/03/19 07/03/69 50 2.45 £9,000,000 

25/03/19 25/03/64 45 2.24 £2,500,000 

02/09/19 02/09/29 10 1.20 £5,000,000 

05/09/19 05/09/34 15 1.43 £5,000,000 

16/03/20 16/09/67 47.5 2.23 £2,500,000 

16/03/20 16/09/33 13.5 2.19 £2,500,000 

TOTAL    £27,700,000 

          Table 3: PWLB Loans 
 

Page 41



4.2 The table below shows the Public Works Loans Board interest rates which were 
available for loans during the first six months of 2020/21.  The Public Works Loans 
Board is the mechanism by which the Government allows local authorities to 
borrow at slightly lower interest rates than are available to other institutions.  
Certainty rates, as detailed in the table, are interest rates available to local 
authorities if they inform the Government of their borrowing requirements and are 
0.02% (or 20 basis points) below Public Works Loans Board rates. This was 
introduced by the Government in October 2012.   

 

Table 4: Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) certainty rates up to 30 September 2020 
 

4.3 There has not been a great deal of volatility in Public Works Loan Board rates 
since the start of the financial year, apart from a more significant spike up during 
the second half of August into early September.  The 50 year Public Works Loan 
Board target rate for new long term borrowing was unchanged at 2.30%.   

 
4.4  Treasury Borrowing – Due to the overall financial position and the underlying 

need to borrow for capital purposes, external borrowing of £27,700,000 had been 
taken up to Quarter 2 2020/21 from the Public Works Loan Board.   

 
4.5 It is anticipated that further borrowing will be required in 2020/21 to support the 

overall Capital Programme in line with the revised Capital Financing requirement 
and Authorised Borrowing limit at £62,500,000, where approval is sought in this 
report. 

 
4.6 Rescheduling of Borrowing – Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very 

limited in the current economic climate and following the various increases in the 
margins added to gilt yields which have impacted PWLB new borrowing rates 
since October 2019.  No debt rescheduling has therefore been undertaken to date 
in the current financial year.   

 
4.7  Repayment of Borrowing – the Council did not have any borrowing to repay 

during Quarter 2 of 2020/21 
 
  

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 1.70% 1.67% 1.91% 2.40% 2.13% 

Date 18/09/2020 30/07/2020 31/07/2020 18/06/2020 24/04/2020 

High 1.94% 1.99% 2.19% 2.80% 2.65% 

Date 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 28/07/2020 28/08/2020 

Average 1.80% 1.80% 2.04% 2.54% 2.33% 

Page 42



ANNEX D 
 
Economic Update 
 
United Kingdom 
 
As expected, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee kept Bank Rate 
unchanged on 6th August 2020. It also kept unchanged the level of quantitative easing at 
£745bn. Its forecasts were optimistic in terms of three areas:  
 

 The fall in Gross Domestic Product in the first half of 2020 was revised from 28% to 
23% (subsequently revised to -21.8%). This is still one of the largest falls in output 
of any developed nation. However, it is only to be expected as the UK economy is 
heavily skewed towards consumer-facing services – an area which was particularly 
vulnerable to being damaged by lockdown. 
 

 The peak in the unemployment rate was revised down from 9% in Quarter 2 to 
7½% by Quarter 4 2020.  

 

 It forecast that there would be excess demand in the economy by Quarter 3 2022 
causing Consumer Price Index inflation to rise above the 2% target in Quarter 3 
2022, (based on market interest rate expectations for a further loosening in policy). 
Nevertheless, even if the Bank were to leave policy unchanged, inflation was still 
projected to be above 2% in 2023. 

 
It also squashed any idea of using negative interest rates, at least in the next six months or 
so. It suggested that while negative rates can work in some circumstances, it would be 
“less effective as a tool to stimulate the economy” at this time when banks are worried 
about future loan losses. It also has “other instruments available”, including quantitative 
easing and the use of forward guidance. 

 
The Monetary Policy Committee expected the £300bn of quantitative easing purchases 
announced between its March and June meetings to continue until the “turn of the year”.  
This implies that the pace of purchases will slow further to about £4bn a week, down from 
£14bn a week at the height of the crisis and £7bn more recently. 
 
In conclusion, this would indicate that the Bank could now just sit on its hands as the 
economy was recovering better than expected.  However, the Monetary Policy Committee 
acknowledged that the “medium-term projections were a less informative guide than usual” 
and the minutes had multiple references to downside risks, which were judged to persist 
both in the short and medium term. One has only to look at the way in which second 
waves of the virus are now impacting many countries including Britain, to see the dangers. 
However, rather than a national lockdown, as in March, any spikes in virus infections are 
now likely to be dealt with by localised measures and this should limit the amount of 
economic damage caused.  
 
In addition, Brexit uncertainties ahead of the year-end deadline are likely to be a drag on 
recovery. The wind down of the initial generous furlough scheme through to the end of 
October is another development that could cause the Bank to review the need for more 
support for the economy later in the year. Admittedly, the Chancellor announced in late 
September a second six month package from 1st November of government support for 
jobs whereby it will pay up to 22% of the costs of retaining an employee working a 

Page 43



minimum of one third of their normal hours. There was further help for the self-employed, 
freelancers and the hospitality industry.  However, this is a much less generous scheme 
than the furlough package and will inevitably mean there will be further job losses from the 
11% of the workforce still on furlough in mid September 2020. 
 
Overall, the pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V shape, but a 
more elongated and prolonged one after a sharp recovery in June through to August which 
left the economy 11.7% smaller than in February. The last three months of 2020 are now 
likely to show no growth as consumers will probably remain cautious in spending and 
uncertainty over the outcome of the UK/EU trade negotiations concluding at the end of the 
year will also be a headwind. If the Bank felt it did need to provide further support to 
recovery, then it is likely that the tool of choice would be more quantitative easing.  
 
There will be some painful longer term adjustments as e.g. office space and travel by 
planes, trains and buses may not recover to their previous level of use for several years, or 
possibly ever. There is also likely to be a reversal of globalisation as this crisis has shown 
up how vulnerable long-distance supply chains are. On the other hand, digital services is 
one area that has already seen huge growth. 
 
One key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance was a new phrase in the policy 
statement, namely that “it does not intend to tighten monetary policy until there is clear 
evidence that significant progress is being made in eliminating spare capacity and 
achieving the 2% target sustainably”. That seems designed to say, in effect, that even if 
inflation rises to 2% in a couple of years’ time, do not expect any action from the Monetary 
Policy Committee to raise Bank Rate – until they can clearly see that level of inflation is 
going to be persistently above target if it takes no action to raise Bank Rate. 
 
The Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6th August 2020 revised down their 
expected credit losses for the banking sector to “somewhat less than £80bn”. It stated that 
in its assessment “banks have buffers of capital more than sufficient to absorb the losses 
that are likely to arise under the Monetary Policy Committee’s central projection”. The 
Financial Policy Committee stated that for real stress in the sector, the economic output 
would need to be twice as bad as the Monetary Policy Committee’s projection, with 
unemployment rising to above 15%.  
 
USA.  
 
The incoming sets of data during the first week of August were almost universally stronger 
than expected. With the number of new daily coronavirus infections beginning to abate, 
recovery from its contraction this year of 10.2% should continue over the coming months 
and employment growth should also pick up again. However, growth will be dampened by 
continuing outbreaks of the virus in some states leading to fresh localised restrictions.  
 
At its end of August 2020 meeting, the Fed tweaked its inflation target from 2% to 
maintaining an average of 2% over an unspecified time period i.e.following periods when 
inflation has been running persistently below 2%, appropriate monetary policy will likely 
aim to achieve inflation moderately above 2% for some time.  This change is aimed to 
provide more stimulus for economic growth and higher levels of employment and to avoid 
the danger of getting caught in a deflationary “trap” like Japan.  
 
  

Page 44



It is to be noted that inflation has actually been under-shooting the 2% target significantly 
for most of the last decade so financial markets took note that higher levels of inflation are 
likely to be in the pipeline; long term bond yields duly rose after the meeting. The Fed also 
called on Congress to end its political disagreement over providing more support for the 
unemployed as there is a limit to what monetary policy can do compared to more directed 
central government fiscal policy.  
 
The FOMC’s updated economic and rate projections in mid-September 2020 showed that 
officials expect to leave the fed funds rate at near-zero until at least end-2023 and 
probably for another year or two beyond that. There is now some expectation that where 
the Fed has led in changing its inflation target, other major central banks will follow. The 
increase in tension over the last year between the US and China is likely to lead to a lack 
of momentum in progressing the initial positive moves to agree a phase one trade deal. 
 
EU.  
 
The economy was recovering well towards the end of Quarter 2 after a sharp drop in 
Gross Domestic Product, (e.g. France 18.9%, Italy 17.6%).  However, the second wave of 
the virus affecting some countries could cause a significant slowdown in the pace of 
recovery, especially in countries more dependent on tourism. The fiscal support package, 
eventually agreed by the EU after prolonged disagreement between various countries, is 
unlikely to provide significant support and quickly enough to make an appreciable 
difference in weaker countries. The ECB has been struggling to get inflation up to its 2% 
target and it is therefore expected that it will have to provide more monetary policy support 
through more quantitative easing purchases of bonds in the absence of sufficient fiscal 
support. 
 
China 
 
After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Quarter 1, economic recovery 
was strong in Q2 and has enabled it to recover all of the contraction in Quarter 1. 
However, this was achieved by major central government funding of yet more 
infrastructure spending. After years of growth having been focused on this same area, any 
further spending in this area is likely to lead to increasingly weaker economic returns. This 
could, therefore, lead to a further misallocation of resources which will weigh on growth in 
future years. 
 
Japan 
 
There are some concerns that a second wave of the virus is gaining momentum and could 
dampen economic recovery from its contraction of 8.5% in Gross Domestic Product. It has 
been struggling to get out of a deflation trap for many years and to stimulate consistent 
significant Gross Domestic Product growth and to get inflation up to its target of 2%, 
despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental 
reform of the economy. The resignation of Prime Minister Abe is not expected to result in 
any significant change in economic policy. 
 
World growth 
 
Latin America and India are currently hotspots for virus infections. World growth will be in 
recession this year. Inflation is unlikely to be a problem for some years due to the creation 
of excess production capacity and depressed demand caused by the coronavirus crisis. 

Page 45



INTEREST RATE FORECAST 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link, has provided the following forecasts on 11 August 
2020 (Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) rates are certainty rates, gilt yields plus 180bps. 
 

 

Table 5: Interest Rate Forecasts 

The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and economies 
around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank 
Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its meeting on 6th 
August 2020 (and the subsequent September 2020 meeting), although some forecasters 
had suggested that a cut into negative territory could happen. However, the Governor of 
the Bank of England has made it clear that he currently thinks that such a move would do 
more damage than good and that more quantitative easing is the favoured tool if further 
action becomes necessary. As shown in the forecast table above, no increase in Bank 
Rate is expected within the forecast horizon ending on 31st March 2023 as economic 
recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged 

 
 

Gilt Yields / Public Works Loan Board Rates  
 
There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond markets were in a 
bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low levels. 
The context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for 
a recession in 2020. In addition, there were growing expectations of a downturn in world 
economic growth, especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the 
US and China, together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and 
expected to remain subdued. Combined, these conditions were conducive to very low 
bond yields.   
 
While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 
years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers. This means that central 
banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer 
spending, inflation, etc. The consequence of this has been the gradual lowering of the 
overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.   
 
Over the year prior to the coronavirus crisis, this has seen many bond yields up to 10 
years turn negative in the Eurozone. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of 
bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the 
past, this has been a precursor of a recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond 

Link Group Interest Rate View       11.8.20

Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23

Bank Rate View 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

3 month average earnings 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 - - - - -

6 month average earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 - - - - -

12 month average earnings 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 - - - - -

5yr PWLB Rate 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

Page 46



prices are elevated as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. 
shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of equities.   
Gilt yields had therefore already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus 
crisis hit western economies during March.  
 
After gilt yields spiked up during the initial phases of the health crisis in March, we have 
seen these yields fall sharply to unprecedented lows as major western central banks took 
rapid action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets, and started massive 
quantitative easing purchases of government bonds: this also acted to put downward 
pressure on government bond yields at a time when there has been a huge and quick 
expansion of government expenditure financed by issuing government bonds. Such 
unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” times would have caused bond yields to rise 
sharply.   
 
At the close of the day on 30th September, all gilt yields from 1 to 6 years were in negative 
territory, while even 25-year yields were at only 0.76% and 50 year at 0.60%.   
From the local authority borrowing perspective, HM Treasury imposed two changes of 
margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning. The first took 
place on 9th October 2019, adding an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period 
rates.  That increase was then at least partially reversed for some forms of borrowing on 
11th March 2020, but not for mainstream General Fund capital schemes, at the same time 
as the Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased infrastructure 
expenditure. 
 
It also announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on possibly 
further amending these margins; this was to end on 4th June, but that date was 
subsequently put back to 31st  July. It is clear HM Treasury will no longer allow local 
authorities to borrow money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is 
solely to generate an income stream (assets for yield). 
Following the changes on 11th March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation 
is as follows: -  

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
It is possible that the non-HRA Certainty Rate will be subject to revision downwards after 
the conclusion of the PWLB consultation; however, the timing of such a change is currently 
an unknown, although it would be likely to be within the current financial year. 
 
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 180bps), above shows, 
there is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will 
take economies, including the UK, a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they 
have lost in the sharp recession caused during the coronavirus shut down period. Inflation 
is also likely to be very low during this period and could even turn negative in some major 
western economies during 2020/21.  
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX E 
 

Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators 
2020/21 – 30 September 2020 

 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 
borrowing limits – the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary - as detailed below.  The 
Council approved the Treasury and Prudential Indicators (affordability limits), for the 2020/21 
financial year at Council on 25 February 2020 in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. At Quarter 2 2020/21, there has been a reduction in the Authorised Borrowing Limit 
from £90,000,000 to £62,500,000 mainly due to the suspension of the Commercialisation 
Investment Strategy with the addition of other projects; the details in this report update the 
position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already 
approved. 
 
The main purpose of the indicators is to control how much a Council needs to borrow. 
 
In 2020/21, The Treasury Management Strategy Statement approved the capital financing 
requirement at £86,073,196 which gives the Council the ability to either use surplus funds to 
support the capital expenditure or to take external borrowing; this has been revised down in 
Quarter 2 in accordance with the requirements of the capital programme to £53,735,048.  
 
The Prudential and Treasury Indicators are detailed below as approved at Council prior to the 
beginning of the 2020/21 financial year – Original Budget - and Quarter 2 Actual: 
 
 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2020/21 2020/21 

Extract from budget and rent setting report  
Original 
Budget 

Actual 
Q2 

 £'000 £'000 

Capital Expenditure 51,571 20,544 

    

Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 2021 86,073 53,735 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Brought Forward 56,220 41,737 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Council Services 14,929 11,998 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Commercial    
Activities 

14,924 - 

   

Annual Change in the Capital Financing 
Requirement 

-  (32,338) 

    

 In year borrowing requirement 34,300 10,000 

  Brought forward 1 April 34,700 27,700 

  Carried forward 31 March  69,000 37,700 

  Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 12.00% 4.27% 

 

Page 49



2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS  2020/21 2020/21 

 
Original 
Budget 

Actual 
Q2 

 £'000 £'000 

Authorised Limit for external debt  90,000 62,500 

   

Operational Boundary for external debt  88,400 55,600 

   

External debt 69,000 27,700 

    

Investments  2,229 12,530 

 

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during 
2020/21 

Lower limit Upper limit 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 

 
 

Page 50



Annex F 

Third Party Companies Update at Quarter 2 2020/21 

 

1.0 Introduction  

1.1 The purpose of this Annex is to provide information in line with the Local Government Ethical 
Standards and The Review undertaken by the Committee on Standards in Public Life. This 
identified areas of ‘best practice’ for local authorities which represent a benchmark for ethical 
practice.  It recommends that the Council should report on separate bodies they have set up / 
created or which they own and publish the separate bodies annual reports and minutes in an 
accessible place.  Reporting on the separate bodies will also be included in the Council’s 
annual governance statement which is presented to the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee on an annual basis usually in July each year. 

 
1.2 In order for the Council to provide a full picture of the relationship with separate bodies and 

abide by the Nolan principle of openness and to be transparent the information included here 
reports on the financial position of the Council’s third party bodies and also provides 
information on the location of the annual reports. 

 
1.3 The Council has set up third party bodies, in line with legal requirements, as set out in the 

Council Plan to ensure ongoing financial sustainability and further information is included 
below.  The Council creates and supports new opportunities and new income streams to 
ensure the on-going affordability of council services.  

  
 
 
2.0 Third Party Companies 

 
2.1 The Council currently has a Joint venture Partnership with Wykeland – Central Northallerton 

Development Company Ltd - that was formed in October 2017.  Further information is detailed 
below. 

 
2.3 In addition, two further companies limited by shares have been set up in line with the 

September 2019 Council approval of the Commercial Property Investment Portfolio and 
delegated authority given to the Chief Executive to set up a further wholly owned company for 
the purpose of acquiring and managing investment properties.  The two companies are: 

 Hambleton District Holdings 

 Hambleton Property Limited 

  
2.4 At Quarter 2, 30 September 2020 no investment had occurred and the Commercial Investment 

Strategy report approved at Council in September 2020 suspended the Commercial 

Investment Strategy at the current time.  This was due to: 

 increase in Publics Works Loan Board interest rates on borrowing in October 2019 
resulting in the income to be generated from commercial investments being marginal;  

 consultation paper from HM Treasury on ‘Public Works Loan Board: future lending terms’ 
in March 2020 where it is clearly implies the Treasury will no longer allow local 
authorities to borrow money from the Public Works Loan Board to purchase commercial 
property if the aim is solely to generate an income stream  

 current Covid-19 environment where receipt of rental income is uncertain  
 

2.5 The Government’s comments on the consultation paper from HM Treasury on ‘Public Works 

Loan Board: future lending terms’ are still awaited at this time.  

 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

3.0 Central Northallerton Development Company Limited 

3.1 Annual Accounts 2019/20 – Central Northallerton Development Company Limited has 
produced final accounts for three years where the annual report and financial statements 31 
March 2020 are published at Companies House and are also available on the Council’s 
website.  The link is as follows: 
https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_ac
counts/4 

 
3.2 Quarter 2 2020/21 as 30 September 2020 - Attached at Appendix A is Central Northallerton 

Development Company Limited’s financial position at Quarter 2 2020/21, which is supplied for 
transparency purposes. The following highlights information from the accounts: 

 

 The accounts show a profit for the financial period from 1 April 2020 to 30 September 

2020 of £1,639,665 due to the sale of Phase 1 to Hambleton District Council 

 

 The ‘Turnover’ includes the rent received from Crosby Road Car Park of £37,638 where 

HDC receives 100% of the initial £55,000, £55,000 to £70,000 goes to CNDCL (of which 

HDC will receive 50%) and then after £70,000 HDC receives 60% and Wykeland 40%.  

This is detailed in the 4 September 2018 Cabinet report. Furthermore £2,040,546 is from 

the sale of Phase 1 back to Hambleton District Council. 

 

 The ‘Investment Properties’ detailed in the balance sheet mainly relate to the Crosby 

Road Car park, where there is also a small amount of ‘Plant’ at £2,172. 

 

 The ‘Inventories’ figure £905,389, in the balance sheet mainly relates to the 

development of the south side of the Treadmills site where the historic buildings are 

located; the site is due to complete in Autumn 2020.  The expenditure has been funded 

by Hambleton District Council in line with Council approval of the process to purchase 

the south side of The Treadmills site in July 2018.  The site has opened with Lidl and 

Iceland in November 2020 and further details will be reported in quarter 3. 

 

 The ‘Loan from Hambleton District Council’ in the balance sheet of £2,415,248 is in 

relation to the land transfer of the former prison site for the development of Treadmills 

along with Wykeland.   

 

 The loss brought forward from previous years is £76,356, on completion of the south 

side of the Treadmills site the accounts are now in profit with the total profit standing at 

£1,563,309.   

 

  

Page 52

https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_accounts/4
https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_accounts/4


Appendix A 

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021 - for the period ending 30 
September 2020 

    

  
Period ended Year ended 

  Notes 30-Sep-20 31-Mar-20 

Turnover 
 

2,078,184 98,304 

Cost of Sales   0 0 

Gross profit (loss) 
 

2,078,184 98,304 

Administrative expenses   (68,519) (107,389) 

Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 
 

2,009,665 (9,085) 

Tax on profit on ordinary activities   (370,000) 0 

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year/period   1,639,665 (9,085) 

        

Balance Sheet for the for the period ending 30 September 2020 
    Notes 30-Sep-20 31-Mar-20 

Fixed Assets       

Investment Properties 
 

94,610 94,610 

Plant   2,172 0 

    96,782 94,610 

Current Assets 
   Inventories 
 

905,389 2,304,205 

Debtors 
 

17,160 35,435 

Cash at bank and in hand   3,752,534 780,694 

    4,675,083 3,120,334 

Creditors: amounts falling due in within one year   (793,305) (876,048) 

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)   3,881,778 2,244,286 

Total assets less current liabilities   3,978,560 2,338,896 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   (2,415,248) (2,415,248) 

Net Assets/(Liabilities)   1,563,312 (76,352) 

    Capital and Reserves 
   Called up share capital 
 

4 4 

Profit and loss account   1,563,309 (76,356) 

Total shareholder' deficit   1,563,313 (76,352) 

        
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021 - for the period ending 30 September 
2020 

 

Called up 
share capital 

Profit and 
(Loss) 

account 

Total 
shareholders' 

deficit 

  £ £ £ 

Balance at 31 March 2020 
                        

4  (76,356) (76,352) 

Profit/(Loss)for the financial year to date 
                         
-  1,639,665 (1,957) 

Balance at 30 September 2020 
                        

4  1,563,309 (78,309) 
 

 Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: 2020/21 Q2 Revenue Monitoring Report 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to update Members on the revenue budget position of 

the Council and the reserve funds at the end of September 2020. 
 
1.2  The Quarter 2 monitoring for the Capital Programme and Treasury Management 

position is contained in a separate report on this Cabinet agenda. 
 
1.3  This report focuses on three key areas:-  
 
 (a)  Changes to the revenue budget  
 (b)  Additional grant income received  
 (c)  Reserve funds 
 
2.0 Revenue Budget   
 
2.1  The Council set its budget on 11 February 2020 for 2020/21 at £9,269,670 in line 

with the approved Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2029/30. 
 
2.2  At Cabinet on 8 September 2020, the Quarter 1 revenue monitoring report kept the 

budget at £9,269,670 but recognised that a £126,330 shortfall would be covered 
within the year from additional income or reduced expenditure. The approved 
budget at Quarter 1 in accordance with the Council portfolio themes is detailed 
below: 

 
                  £  
 
    Environment      4,081,290 
    Economy and Planning    2,072,400 
    Finance & Commercial      (69,450) 
    Leisure & Communities   1,698,030 
    Law and Governance    1,361,070 
    Drainage Board levies       126,330 
    Net Revenue Expenditure   9,269,670 
 
  

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



2.3 The Quarter 1 revenue monitoring report also estimated a potential increase to the 
budget of £3,580,032 as a result of COVID-19.  This was recorded prior to 
information on the Governments Loss of Income scheme was available and a 
further updated position is included within this report. 

 
3.0 Budget position to September 2020 
 
3.1 Since the budget for 2020/21 was set in February 2020, adjustments to the budget 

outlook have occurred. The table below details the changes that have been 
approved through separate reports to Cabinet and also those that have been 
identified and are recommended to this Cabinet for approval at budget monitoring 
Quarter 2: 

 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £ £ £ £ 

Budget Outlook approved at 11 February 
2020 

9,269,670 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,622,300 

Changes to budget outlook:     

Inflation – salaries and contracts - 323,604 579,027 336,006 

Back funded pension (NYCC) - - - 250,000 

Insurance fund - 25,000 27,000 29,000 

Additional Costs - - - 107,255 

Future High Street Fund - 106,000 - - 

Finance Costs - 184,948 - - 

Route Optimisation - 263,000 16,320 - 

Fees & Charges - (136,350) (139,077) (141,858) 

Other Income Streams - (327,248) (309,880) (215,387) 

Savings Exercise - (212,745) (46,969) (300,638) 

Quarter 1 Variances:     

Corporate Costs Increase 48,030 (48,030) - - 

Departmental Increases 78,300 (78,300) - - 

Unrealised Salary Savings 115,000 (115,000) - - 

Quarter 2 Variances:     

Salary savings now realised  (123,450) 123,450 - - 

Corporate Costs  87,770 (87,770) - - 

Departmental Savings (7,860) 7,860 - - 

Shortfall - savings or additional income 
requirements in Quarters 3 and 4 

(197,790) 197,790 - - 

Budget Outlook Q2 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,662,300 9,579,423 

Financial Strategy 11 Feb 2020 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,662,300 9,579,423 

COVID-19 Costs 1,689,510 (1,689,510) - - 

 
3.2  In 2020/21 the budget started at £9,269,670 as stated in the Financial Strategy and 

illustrated in the table above. At the end of Quarter 1, the budget remained at 
£9,269,670 but recognised that a £126,330 shortfall would be covered within the 
year from additional income or reduced expenditure. In addition to the £126,330 
budgeted increase at Quarter 1, unrealised salary savings of £115,000 was also 
required which means that the total savings to be found at Quarter 1 in 2020/21 was 
£241,330. 

 

Page 56



3.3 In addition to the shortfall in paragraph 3.2, there has been additional expenditure 
and loss of income estimated as a result of COVID-19 of £5,393,535. The Council 
has been allocated grants from the Government of £3,704,025 to support it during 
the pandemic resulting at Quarter 2 in an increased budget of £1,689,510. This is to 
be monitored during the year and if no further funding is received then the Council’s 
reserves will be used. 

 
3.4 At Quarter 2 monitoring numerous underspends and overspends for the year have 

been identified including salary savings of £123,450.  This covers the 2020/21 
budgeted salary savings that were previously unrealised of £115,000 and therefore 
provides an additional £8,450 underspend. In addition, overspends of £79,910 have 
been identified, which has resulted in a total shortfall of £71,460 at Quarter 2, 
increasing the shortfall to £197,790 for the year. The expected shortfall of £197,790 
excludes any shortfall as a result of COVID-19. It is recommended that the budget 
remains at £9,269,670 as the table above shows.  It will be closely monitored during 
Quarter 3 and Quarter 4 for reduced expenditure or additional income of £197,790. 

 
3.5  An explanation of the Quarter 2 variances to be approved in this Cabinet report are 

detailed below where there are two main areas of change to the 2020/21 budget at 
Quarter 2, excluding COVID-19 costs, totalling increased expenditure of £71,460: 

 
a) Effect of salary savings offsetting unrealised salary savings of £8,450 

 
b) Corporate Cost expenditure of £87,770. 

 
c) Significant Departmental Movements resulting in an underspend of £7,860.  

 
3.6  The Corporate Cost movements in the budget are:  
 

(i) A corporate Salary Savings exercise analysing vacant posts which has 
resulted in a £123,450 saving in Quarter 2. 
 

(ii) The salary pay award has been agreed at 2.75% which is 0.25% above the 
budgeted 2.5% resulting in an overspend of £30,140. 

 
(iii) An increase in the electricity contract will be applied from December 2020, 

resulting in a £2,130 overspend in 2020/21. 
 
(iv) An additional budget of £55,500 is required to cover the added costs for 

holiday pay to Leisure and Waste and Street Scene Staff in relation to the 
Christmas shut down and additional holiday pay for staff working additional 
hours. 

 
3.7  Significant Departmental movements of £7,860 underspend include the following:-  
 

(i) Environment – A saving of £57,600 relates to numerous areas including 
£42,840 savings in connection to a delay in acquiring new kerbside vehicles.  
This offsets new waste collection vehicles of £6,640. Additional income of 
£22,000 has been received compared to the budget for Green Waste 
Licences due to increased number of sales because of the Waste and 
Recycling Centre being closed due to COVID-19, however, this is partly 
offset by additional expenditure for the licences of £600. 

Page 57



 
(ii) Economy & Planning – An underspend of £15,300 relates to numerous areas 

including an amount received of £28,630 from the Building Control 
Partnership to reduce the reserves of the Partnership to the maximum levels, 
however the annual contribution to the Partnership needs to be increased by 
£2,870. £10,560 of the Homelessness Prevention grant is not required to be 
paid to the One Off Fund, therefore there is an increase of income to the 
budget.  Workspaces are hosting a reduced number of external meetings, 
therefore the amount of expenditure spent on refreshments is estimated to 
be £9,400 lower than budgeted.  Additional increases of the budget include 
reduced income from Workspaces of £5,670, a £20,250 contribution to the 
Local Enterprise Partnership being required and increased costs of £4,500 
for Planning adverts. 

 
(iii) Finance & Commercial – An overspend of £10,920 relates to a number of 

areas.  £15,500 relates to an increase of IT maintenance in Customer 
Services for the various E-forms software.  An additional £2,000 is required 
for the maintenance of an improved payment solution customers use on the 
website.  An increase in the amount of salaries paid, has resulted in the 
amount required to be paid for the Apprenticeship levy increasing by an 
estimated £6,840. The updated effects relating to the budgets of Investment 
Interest, Commercial Portfolio and Treadmills is a total saving of £13,420.  
This is due to £10,500 less interest being earned compared to the budget 
because of very low interest rates being available for the Council to invest 
any surplus funds, these currently range from 0% to 0.045%.  A loan of 
£1,000,000 to a Local Housing Association has been repaid to the Council, 
this loan was not renewed resulting in £16,110 of reduced interest income for 
2020/21.  Income from the Treadmills development has produced savings of 
£40,030 as well as offsetting the additional borrowing costs and the effects of 
the Commercial Portfolio being suspended which was agreed at Council in 
September 2020. 

 
(iv) Leisure & Communities – Increased costs of £39,470 have been identified in 

a number of areas including an additional £38,040 at the Leisure Centres to 
cover backdated staffing regrades.  The termination of an office space rental 
contract at the Civic Centre has created a shortfall of £7,180 income for the 
year.  This is partly offset by reduced expenditure relating to associated 
Mayfair costs of £5,750 due to the Mayfair event not taking place in 2020/21. 

 
(v) Law & Governance – Increased costs of £14,650 is as a result of a legal 

practice course of £12,750 and increased subscriptions for legal online 
resources of £1,900. 

 
3.8  The revised changes to the budget at Quarter 2 result in a salary saving of 

£123,450 which will offset the £115,000 budgeted unrealised saving and offset 
£8,450 of the £80,610 overspends in Quarter 2. These are listed above and can be 
added to the £126,330 overspend in Quarter 1.Therefore in the recommendations 
section of this report for approval by Cabinet and Council, the original budget set at 
£9,269,670 will remain and the shortfall of £197,790, excluding COVID-19 costs, 
will be closely monitored in Quarters 3 and 4 for any additional income or reduced 
expenditure. 

 

Page 58



4.0 COVID-19 
 
4.1  The current COVID-19 pandemic has had a huge effect on the Council’s finances 

where additional expenditure and loss of income has occurred.  Government 
measures have assisted the Council as well as the Hambleton residents and 
businesses via various grants and reliefs. 

 
4.2  The Council has had a wide range of increased expenditure as a result of COVID-

19; this includes IT costs so that members of staff are able to work from home, 
adjustments to Leisure Centres and Offices to comply with social distancing advice, 
Personal Protective Equipment for the staff and increased staffing in areas that 
have the requirements. The total cost is estimated to be £1,160,688 at the end of 
the financial year and Covid-19 support grant has been provided from Government 
in 4 allocations over the last 8 months.  Further expenditure has been incurred 
relating to the administration of business grants, self-isolation payments, re-opening 
of house streets, work done in Environmental Health for contained outbreak 
management and planning is underway for compliance and enforcement.  In future 
costs will also be incurred for capital developments in housing accommodation. 

 
4.3  The Council has received the following grant allocations from the Government in 

relation to COVID-19 at Quarter 2, where some grants have been received, some 
grants will be claimed in relation to expenditure and some grants will be distributed 
from North Yorkshire County Council: 

 

COVID-19 Grants: Amount 

COVID-19 Support Grant 1,160,688 

Admin Support for Business Grants 170,000 

Admin Support for Self-isolation payments 24,166 

Re-opening High Streets 80,700 

Contain Outbreak Management   62,600 

Compliance & Enforcement 34,157 

Next Steps Accommodation 186,714 

Total 1,719,025 
 

4.4  As part of the Governments Small Business Grants and the Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Grant Scheme, the Council received £30,866,000. The Council has 
awarded grants of £10,000 and £25,000 to businesses across Hambleton since 1 
April 2020. The scheme completed on 30 September 2020 £29,280,000 was paid 
out to 2,542 businesses in Hambleton which is 93% of those eligible. 

 
4.5  The Discretionary Grants scheme was set up to accommodate certain small 

businesses previously outside the scope of the Small Business Grants and the 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Schemes. The scheme ran twice with the 
second scheme closing on 12 July 2020 and businesses receiving grants on 24 July 
2020. In total, 188 organisations received funding from the money provided by 
Government at £1,420,000. Grants were awarded to market traders, shared flexible 
workspace businesses, charities, Bed & Breakfast establishments, micro and other 
small businesses. Of the £30,866,000 provided by Government for the Business 
Grants Scheme the reconciliation shows that £166,000 is due to be returned. 

 
  

Page 59



4.6  COVID-19 has affected the ability for the Council to maintain its budgeted level of 
income.  At Quarter 2 loss in Fees and Charges received is estimated to be 
£3,674,510; the main areas are the four Leisure Centres with the closure and 
reduced capacity resulting in an estimated loss of £2,610,850 for the year. Free 
parking and reduced visitors has resulted in an estimated £443,920 loss of Car 
Parking income for the year. 

 
4.7 The Governments Loss of Income Scheme will provide some support for certain 

income streams where the Council is experiencing a loss.  At Quarter 2, the Council 
is predicting that it will be able to reclaim £1,985,000 of the estimated total loss of 
income of £3,674,510 for the full year.  The £1,689,510 shortfall will be monitored 
and will be funded by reserves if required. 

 
4.8  In addition, in 2021/22 there will be a further cost to the Council from Covid-19 in 

relation to the estimated loss of funding from a reduction in receipts from Council 
Tax, Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Business rates from 2020/21. This 
position will become clearing the next few months as the Government polices 
around COVID-19 change and the impact is better understood across the UK. 

 
5.0 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Reserve 
 
5.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) balance as at 30 September 2020 is 

£3,302,086.  The Council is committed to using money received on new 
developments in the area from developers to fund infrastructure which will support 
development and growth proposed within the Hambleton Local Development 
Framework (LDF).  This funding is not included in the budget or Financial Strategy 
of the Council because the Council only administers the scheme and does not have 
ownership of the reserve. 

 
 The receipts are earmarked for priority schemes and to distribute to parishes. The 

movements in 2020/21 can be seen in the table below. 
 

 Amount 

2020/21 Opening Balance 4,301,881 

Add in-year income 293,833 

Less in-year payments to parishes (86,667) 

Less in-year transfers to the Capital 
Programme 

(1,206,961) 

2020/21 Closing Balance Quarter 2 3,302,086 

 
6.0 Other Matters - Grants 
 
6.1 The following grants and contributions have been allocated to the Council and paid 

into the One Off Fund Reserve during Quarter 2 of 2020/21. 
 

Description Amount 

£ 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG)   

1,471 

Cabinet Office 7,532 

Department of Works & Pensions 966 

Total 9,969 

Page 60



7.0 Sensitivity Analysis 
 
7.1 Further to the recommendations for changes to the budget in this Quarter 2 

monitoring report, this report also highlights where there are areas of budget 
uncertainty. This can give Members early warning of possible issues in the future.  
All areas will be monitored closely and an update provided for Quarter 3 as at this 
time there is uncertainty surrounding these figures to include them as an adjustment 
to the budget.  Annex A attached details the sensitivity analysis. 

 
8.0 Reserve Funding 
 
8.1 The table below shows the position on the revenue reserves at Quarter 2 if the 

recommendations are approved in this Cabinet report.  Further information is also 
described below. 

 

Reserve Fund  

 Balance at 
30 June 

2020                    
£  

Q2 
Movement 
(from) / to 
Reserves 

£  

 Balance at 
30 Sept 

2020                      
£  

General Fund 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

Council Taxpayers Reserve 5,860,693 - 5,860,693 

Grants Fund 45,734 - 45,734 

Economic Development Fund 591,566 - 591,566 

One Off Fund  482,146 51,969 534,115 

Computer Fund 790,162 19,665 809,827 

Repairs & Renewal Fund 947,066 - 947,066 

Community Safety Partnership 12,544 - 12,544 

Local Plan Reserve 95,270 (35,406) 59,864 

Make a Difference Fund 131,000 - 131,000 

Community Housing Fund 97,830 - 97,830 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) 5% Admin Reserve 

38,026 - 38,026 

Income Generating Fund 169,178 - 169,178 

Total Revenue Reserves 11,261,215 36,228 11,297,443 

 
8.2 Economic Development Fund – The opening balance of the fund was £591,566 and 

there have been no further changes during Quarter 2, therefore the balance of the 
Economic Development Fund at year end is estimated to be £591,566. 

 
8.3 The Economic Development fund has previously allocated funding to future years, 

there have been no further adjustments during Quarter 2 resulting in the balance of 
£481,316 remaining for future projects. 

 
8.4 Council Tax Payers Reserve – the balance of the Council Tax Payer Reserve has 

not changed in Quarter 2 and is available to be allocated for future projects. 
 
8.5 One Off Fund - In Quarter 2, the initial balance is £482,146.  Additional income of 

£9,969 was received which can be seen in paragraph 5.1 above. Further 
expenditure to be allocated from the One Off Fund is detailed in the table below at 
£231,000.  An allocation of £23,000 for expenditure relating to the IT system IDOX 

Page 61



is to be returned to the One Off Fund as it is COVID-19 related expenditure.  
£250,000 is to be returned to the fund relating to the anticipated costs of creating an 
external company which after detailed consideration is not going ahead; further 
information is available in paragraph 10.0. The balance on the One Off Fund at 
Quarter 2 increased by £51,969 to £534,115. 

 

Expenditure in 2020/21 from the One Off Fund Amount 

Operation Panther – Additional Costs 9,000 

Operation Panther – Phase 3 2,000 

Set up costs for the Crematorium  70,000 

Dalton Bridge – Phase 2 – additional remedial works 150,000 

Total expenditure recommended for approval at Q2 231,000 

  
8.6 At Quarter 2, is it recommended to Cabinet and Council that the allocation from the 

One Off Fund at £231,000 is approved. 
 
8.7 Computer Fund – The opening balance at Quarter 2 was £790,162 during the 

period there has been a net movement of £19,665.  £26,400 is requested to be 
moved from capital to revenue which has a nil effect on the Computer Fund. A total 
of £31,165 is to be returned to the fund, this includes £24,000 in relation to Public 
Lighting software no longer being required.  CRM telephony integration of £7,000 to 
be rolled forward to 2021/22 and £165 is to be returned to the fund for the Northgate 
upgrade.  £11,500 is requested for the Finance system project due to increased 
costs of archiving the previous system. 

 
8.8 Repairs & Renewal Fund – £947,066 has been brought forward from 2019/20 to 

fund Repairs and Renewal projects to ensure that the Council’s assets are 
maintained to an acceptable standard. 

 
8.9 Local Plan Reserve – Expenditure allocated in Quarter 2 totals £35,406, leaving a 

balance of £59,864. If insufficient funding exists within the year to support the local 
plan then funding in the first instance will be utilised form the one off fund to be 
replaced in future years from income received from applications. 

 
8.10 Make a Difference Fund – Successful awards will invest in worthy local community 

projects which help improve life in neighbourhoods and which support the work of 
the voluntary sector and will be expended by 31 March 2021. 

 
8.11 Income Generating Fund: The reserve is used during the year to financially support 

projects in the initial stages of development which will generate revenue income to 
contribute to the future funding of the Council. At Council in September 2020, the 
Commercial Investment Strategy was suspended.  The costs associated with this 
Commercial Investment Property Portfolio total £113,510, which relate to £27,243 
legal and £10,000 financial advice to set up the commercial investment company 
structure and also £76,267 for the external property investment advisers to develop 
the Commercial Investment Strategy and review potential property in which to 
invest.  These costs have been funded from the Income Generating Fund in 
2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21, where £30,628 relates to 2020/21. 

 

Page 62



8.12 Other Reserves - There has been no movement on other reserves held by the 
Council at Quarter 2 2020/21.  These revenue reserves will be monitored on an 
ongoing basis and any changes will be reported at Quarter 2. 

 
9.0 2020/21 and 2021/22 Business Rates Pool 
 
9.1 The Council was part of a one year, North and West Yorkshire Business Rates Pilot 

scheme during 2019/20 with other councils in the two Yorkshire areas, this ended 
on 31 March 2020.  As a result, in 2020/21 the Council is a member of the North 
and West Yorkshire Business Rate Pool where the calculation of the financial 
position has reverted back to be the arrangements of the North Yorkshire Pool that 
existed prior to 2019/20. It has been agreed that in 2021/22 the Council will no 
longer be part of any Business Rates Pool or Pilot scheme due to the uncertainty of 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
10.0  VAT Partial Exemption 
 
10.1  Further to the recommendations of the 28 July 2020 Cabinet report the Council 

continues to monitor the VAT Partial Exemption position for 2020/21 and the 
calculation currently shows the Council to be below the 5% de-minimis limit. 

 
10.2 Following further consideration of potentially placing Leisure Centres into a vehicle 

due to the effects on VAT partial exemption, it is now considered that the position 
can be managed over the next two to three years.  This is helped by the large 
schemes in the Capital Programme enabling future Leisure Centre expenditure to 
occur and not exceed the partial exemption limits.  The partial exemption limit is 
being monitored over the next two to three year as further to that the Local 
Government Reorganisation is likely to have occurred and the partial exemption 
limit will no longer be in a potential position of breach due to these services that the 
Council provide being part of a larger organisation. 

 
11.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
11.1 The monitoring of the financial budget throughout the year and reporting the 

financial year end position assists in ensuring the Council’s service requirements 
are met and contributes to the achievement of the priorities set out in the Council 
Plan. 

 
12.0 Risk Assessment 
 
12.1 There are no major risks associated with this report. 
 
13.0 Financial Implications 
 
13.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
14.0 Legal Implications 
 
14.1 It is a legal requirement under s25 of the Local Government Act 2003 to set a 

balance budget and monitor the financial position throughout the year. 
 
  

Page 63



15.0 Equality / Diversity Issues 
 
15.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
16.0 Recommendations  
 
16.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council: 
 

(1) the budget remains at £9,269,670 as detailed in paragraph 3.8 of the report; 
 

(2) that reserves will be used to cover the shortfall created by the covid-19 
pandemic if sufficient funds are not received from Government at the year-
end as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the report;  
 

(3) the allocation from the One Off Fund at paragraph 8.6 of the report of 
£231,000; 

 
(4) that it will not be part of a Business Rates Pool or Pilot Scheme in 2021/22 as 

detailed in paragraph 9.1 of the report; and 
 
(5) that a ‘vehicle’ is not to be set up as detailed in paragraph 10.0 of the report 

in relation to VAT partial exemption. 
 

 
Louise Branford-White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers: Budget Monitoring Q2 working papers 
 
Author ref:  SC 
 
Contact:   Saskia Calton 

Corporate Finance Manager 
    Direct Line: 01609 767226 
 
 
 
  

Page 64



Annex A 
 

Budget 2020/21 Qtr 2 Sensitivity Analysis – potential savings / costs 
 

 

Council 
Directorates 

Area of Sensitivity Commentary 

Economy and 
Planning 

Planning Fees This will continue to be closely 
monitored due to the estimated income 
being so high and the effects of 
COVID-19 being unknown. 

 Workspace Management Income This will continue to be closely 
monitored and the effects of any 
tenants leaving sites will be reported at 
Quarter 3.   

Environment Operational Services – Fuel Prices This is being kept under review and 
any significant changes will be 
reported at Quarter 3. 

 Kerbside Recycling Contract Basket price changes will affect the 
budget, this will be closely monitored 
throughout the year. 

Finance & 
Commercial 

Housing Benefit Payments Whilst any increase in Housing Benefit 
payments will be partly offset by 
subsidy, the budget is so large that a 
small increase in percentage terms 
can lead to a large amount in 
monetary terms. 

 Borrowing Interest Any additional borrowing made by the 
council will be an increase to the 
budget, any new borrowing costs will 
be reported at Quarter 3. 

Leisure & 
Communities 

Thirsk Swimming Pool Due to improvement works, starting in 
January 2021, the Leisure Centre will 
have reduced capacity and parts may 
need to be closed. The effects on the 
budget will be estimated and reported 
at Quarter 3 

Council Wide COVID-19 The effects of COVID-19 is 
widespread throughout the Council 
however the full effects are unknown 
but are closely monitored and monthly 
returns are completed to the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government. 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: Extension of Lease at The World of James Herriot 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The report seeks approval from Cabinet and Council for the extension of the lease 

terms presently in place at The World of James Herriot for the purposes of the 
continued provision of a museum/visitor attraction celebrating the life and times of 
the veterinary surgeon Alf Wight. 

 
1.2 In 1999 The World of James Herriot was opened and operated by the District 

Council. In April 2012 the facility and its associated collections and artefacts were 
transferred to The World of James Herriot Limited, a company limited by guarantee, 
under the terms of a lease and a funding and transfer agreement.  The transfer was 
for a peppercorn for a 20-year period, running until 2032, with the Council remaining 
the freehold owner of the property.  

 
1.3 Since this transfer the facility has been operated successfully by the company, 

continuing to provide a museum of international attraction, contributing significantly 
to the local economy.  

 
1.4 A recent valuation of the property (October 2020) valued the asset at less than 

£50,000 (fifty thousand pounds) on the basis that its use is restricted into perpetuity 
to being a museum. Its market value, should its purpose not be restricted to being a 
museum, would be considerably more and would be determined by its future use, 
for example, a residential four bedroom 19th century character property in Thirsk 
has recently been sold, subject to contract, for £635,000.  In addition to the property 
valuation the associated collections and artefacts were valued at £30,369, including 
the vintage car and medicine cabinets, for insurance purposes. 

 
1.5 The extension of the lease at The World of James Herriot will strengthen the 

operators ability to raise external grants and funds in these uncertain times against 
the security of the premises for the continued investment, preservation and 
development of the museum over future years. 

 
1.6 The existing mode of operation would continue with The World of James Herriot Ltd 

being responsible for the full operation and management of the venue. The Council, 
whilst retaining the property freehold, would also continue with responsibility for the 
structural maintenance of the centre. Initial, positive discussions have been held 
with The World of James Herriot Ltd with regards to the new lease, with final 
agreements being needed once the Council has considered the proposal. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6



 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The continued operation of The World of James Herriot links directly with the 

Council’s priorities of Driving Economic Activity and Providing a Special Place to 
Live. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks in approving the recommendations. The terms of the 

proposed lease will identify that the property must be used as a museum. Should 
The World of James Herriot Ltd cease trading for any reason then the facility will 
return to the Council for operational and other necessary considerations.  

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There is no change to the financial responsibilities presently vested with the 

Council.  
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The proposal is that the existing lease is surrendered and a new lease for a 

peppercorn for 30 years (from 2020 to 2050 subject to date of approval) is agreed 
and entered into with The World of James Herriot Ltd.  

 
5.2 In accordance with Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 the Council has the 

power (subject to certain exceptions which do not apply here) to do anything which 
it considers is likely to achieve the promotion or improvement of the economic, 
social or environmental well-being of its area.       

 
5.3 Should the extension of the lease be approved, conditions will be included within 

the document that will ensure the asset’s use as a museum/visitor attraction only, 
requiring the property to be transferred back to the Council in the event that the use 
ceases in the future.   

 
5.4 In granting a lease for 30 years at a peppercorn the Council will in effect be 

disposing of an asset at less than its market value. Local authorities are generally 
required to obtain best consideration (section 123 of the Local Government Act 
1972) in such situations.  However, it is recognised that there may be situations 
where a local authority considers it desirable to dispose of land for less than best 
consideration, for example, to secure the promotion or improvement of the 
economic, social or environmental well-being of the local authority’s area. 

 
5.5 Circular 06/03 of the Local Government Act 1972 - General Disposal Consent 

(England) 2003 permits disposals in such circumstances, provided the value of the 
disposal is less than £2 million and other considerations are taken into account, for 
example, there is a robust and consistent decision making process.  In this case a 
maximum market value significantly less than the £2 million threshold was 
established. 

 
  

Page 68



5.6 External legal advice has been obtained with regards state aid with this proposed 
lease. Whilst the transaction is likely to be regarded as aid, it is not unlawful state 
aid by reason of the de minimis rule.  This rule allows an aggregate of all sources of 
public aid of up to 200,000 Euros over a 3 year period as permissible; the value of 
the Council’s aid would be £50,000 of asset value, in addition to the £47,497 
provided for capital schemes over the period and therefore below the threshold 
figure. In order to confirm compliance with this the Council has written to The World 
of James Herriot Limited and they have confirmed that they have not received aid 
from any other public authority other than Hambleton District Council (Annex A).  

 
5.7 There are rules governing the protection of museum collections and artefacts and 

the lease arrangements will need to deal with these issues adequately. 
 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and diversity issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
7.0 Recommendations      
 
7.1 It is proposed that Cabinet agrees and recommends to Council that: 
 

(1) the existing lease with The World of James Herriot Ltd is surrendered and a 
new lease for a 30 year period at a peppercorn is established;  

 
(2) suitable covenants are placed in the contract documents to protect the 

Council’s position as set out in paragraph 5.3 of the report. 
 
 
Steven Lister 
Director of Leisure & Communities 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: SL 
 
Contact: Steven Lister 
                       Director of Leisure & Communities 
  01609 767033 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: Making a Difference Grants 
 
Portfolio Holder: Leisure and Communities  
 Councillor Mrs B S Fortune  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 Following the success of the Making a Difference Grants’ programme over the last 

six years, whereby £125,000 was made available each year to assist community 
projects, it is proposed that £250,000 is allocated to finance the 2021/22 Making a 
Difference Grants programme in light of the exceptional difficulties experienced by 
our communities in 2020. 

 
1.2   The Making a Difference grants will be awarded using the following approach: 
 

a) Elected members clustered into the 5 geographical sub-area panels will be 
allocated a £50,000 budget to award to grant applications from their area. 
 

b) Grant applications will be assessed and prioritised against the criteria and 
timetable set out in Annex A. 

 
c) Successful awards will invest in worthy local community projects which help 

improve the quality of life for residents of Hambleton and which support the 
work of the voluntary and community sector.   

 
1.3 The five sub-area panel recommendations will be considered by Cabinet for 

approval. 
 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The fund will potentially link to all the Council priorities as every grant awarded will 

need to address at least one of the Council priorities.   
 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
 There are no unmanageable risks associated with this report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Overall budget is limited to £250,000 and it is proposed that this comes from the 

One-Off Fund. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There is a legal responsibility upon the council to ensure that this funding is only 

allocated to projects that can meet the terms and conditions of the grant scheme 
and to ensure that the funds are used for the purpose approved. 

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 This grant scheme will seek to help Hambleton District Council actively reduce 

inequalities in Hambleton by funding community projects and initiatives that will 
make a difference to people’s lives.  

 
7.0 Recommendation   
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves an allocation of £250,000 from the One-Off Fund to be used 

to fund a 2021/22 Making a Difference Grants programme, applying the criteria and 
timetable set out in Annex A. 

 
Steven Lister 
Director of Leisure and Communities  
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: LW 
 
Contact: Lisa Wilson  
  Service Manager (Communities) 
  01609 767149 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 
 

Annex A 
“MAKING A DIFFERENCE” GRANT PROGRAMME CRITERIA AND TIMETABLE  
 
Criteria 
 
Elected Members meet as 5 geographical sub-area panels to assess applications using the 
following selection criteria: 
 

 The applicant is a not-for-profit organisation that is constituted with a bank account 

 The project meets at least one of the council priorities  

 There is clear evidence of need including community involvement  

 The project will make a difference to people’s lives 

 The project represents value for money with regards to the number of beneficiaries  

 The grant requested is for no more than 75% of the scheme costs (capital or revenue) and 
that a minimum of 25% is secured as match funding in cash   

 That the grant can be spent by 31 March 2022.  Any exceptional variances to this will 
require the approval of the Director of Leisure and Communities in consultation with the 
Leisure Portfolio Holder. 

 
The Council priorities are as follows: 

 Priority 1: Driving economic vitality. 

 Priority 2: Enhancing health and wellbeing. 

 Priority 3: Caring for the environment. 

 Priority 4: Providing a special place to live. 

Exclusions 
 
The following groups are not eligible for funding:  
 

 Individuals  

 Businesses 

 Statutory organisations (excluding Parish Councils) 
 
Grant value 
 
The minimum grant award will be £2,000 and the maximum £25,000.   
 
Timetable  
 

14 December 2020 The grants scheme is approved and launched  

31 January 2021 Deadline for applications   

w/c 1 March 2021 Member panel meetings  

13 April 2021 Cabinet approval of grants 

30 April 2021 Deadline for project delivery  

 
Any exceptional variances to this will require the approval of the Director of Leisure and 
Communities in consultation with the Leisure Portfolio Holder. 

 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 1 December 2020 
 
Subject: Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to recommend to Cabinet and seek approval to:  

 
a) continue with the current design of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

which was introduced in April 2020; and 
 

b) increase the level of income, within the income bands, as shown in paragraph 
1.4 of the report by the appropriate level of inflation measured by the Consumer 
Price Index at the 1 October 2020. 
 

1.2 Each year the Council is required to review its Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 1A of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and to either maintain the scheme or replace it.  As 
with the majority of authorities in England, the Council has approved changes to its 
scheme several times since its introduction in April 2013 to aid administration and 
reduce complexities. 
 

1.3 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme is calculated based on household income 
compared to household size up to a maximum of 90% of their Council Tax charge.  
The minimum that a resident would need to pay towards their Council Tax is 10%. 

 
1. 4 The table below demonstrates the simplified banded scheme that was introduced in 

April 2020: 
  

Band  Maximum 
award  
level  

Passported  Single 
(weekly £) 

Couple  
(weekly £) 

Family 
with      
1 child  
(Weekly £) 

Family 
with 2+ 
children 
(Weekly £) 

1 90% Income based 
jobseeker 

allowance, Income 
based employment 
support allowance, 

Income support 

£0.00- 
£130.00 

£0.00-
£160.00 

£0.00- 
£200.00 

£0.00- 
£250.00 

2 80% N/A £130.01- 
£170.00 

£160.  01-
£210.  00 

£200.01- 
£250.00 

£250.01- 
£300.00 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Band  Maximum 
award  
level  

Passported  Single 
(weekly £) 

Couple  
(weekly £) 

Family 
with      
1 child  
(Weekly £) 

Family 
with 2+ 
children 
(Weekly £) 

3 60% N/A £170.01- 
£210.00 

£210.01- 
£260.00 

£250.01- 
£320.00 

£300.01- 
£350.00 

4 30% N/A £210.01- 
£310.00 

£260.01-
£350.00 

£320.01- 
£420.00 

£350.01-
£450.00 

5 0% N/A Above 
£310.01 

Above 
£350.01 

Above 
£420.01 

Above 
£450.01 

 
1.5 Following the introduction of the scheme in April 2020, with the aim of providing 

more financial support to the most vulnerable in the district and reducing the 
administrative burden placed on the council by the introduction of Universal Credit, 
there have been no significant complaints made. 
 

1.6 The intention to monitor the scheme, for any design flaws and impacts on collection 
rates, has occurred less than anticipated due to the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic as resources have been used to support the introduction of the 
Coronavirus Hardship Fund (which has seen customers Council Tax balances being 
reduced by up to £150.  00) and the Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme. 
 

1.7 It is for these reasons that it is suggested that the only change to the scheme is to 
increase the income bands by the rate of Consume Price Index to keep in line with 
inflation. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The funding environment is constantly changing which requires a review of how 

services are provided.  The provision of a Council Tax Reduction Scheme to 
support financially vulnerable residents is a statutory function.  A simplified system 
for residents will not only reduce the administration costs of the scheme but also link 
to the Council’s priority for providing a special place to live and driving economic 
vitality. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
 
3.1 There are no significant risks in approving the Council Tax Reduction scheme  
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Since April 2013, funding for a local Council Tax Reduction Scheme has been 

amalgamated into other central government grants paid to Local Authorities and 
also within the business rates retention regime. 

 
4.2 The cost of the current Council Tax Reduction Scheme in October 2020 is 

£4,070,211  which is spread across the District Council (6%), Parish Councils (2%) 
County Council (74), Fire (4%), and Police (14%) in accordance with the proportion 
of Council Tax which each organisation levies (shown in brackets). 

 

Page 78



4.3 The total cost of £4,070,211 can be split into the national scheme which covers 
applications from pensioners and cannot be changed by the Council at £2,364,811 
and the local scheme available to working age customers which this report covers 
which stands at £1,705,399. 

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 Schedule 1A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) states: 
  

“For each financial year, each billing authority must consider whether to revise its 
scheme or to replace it with another scheme.” 
 

5.2 Section 13A of the same Act gives billing authorities power to reduce the amount of 
Council Tax payable: 

 
1. Where a person is liable to pay Council Tax in respect of any chargeable 

dwelling and any day, the billing authority for the area in which the dwelling is 
situated may reduce the amount which he is liable to pay as respects the 
dwelling and the day to such extent as it thinks fit. 
 

2.   The power under subsection (1) above includes power to reduce an amount 
to nil. 

 
3.   The power under subsection (1) may be exercised in relation to particular 

cases or by determining a class of case in which liability is to be reduced to 
an extent provided by the determination. 

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however these are the same 

issues as reported in the April 2020 scheme which went to cabinet in December 
2019. 

 
7.0 Recommendation 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that the current income banded 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme with no changes other than the increase of the 
income bands in line with CPI at 1 October 2020, is adopted from April 2021. 
 

 
Louise Branford White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer)  
 
 
Background papers: Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
Author ref: SG 
Contact: Sue Grant 
  Taxation and Benefits Manager    
  Direct Line: 01609 767220 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Economic Response and Recovery Plan
	Economic Recovery Plan - Annex

	4 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year Review
	Annex A 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year Review
	Annex B 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year Review
	Annex C D for 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year Review
	Annex E for 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-year Review
	Annex F for 2020/21 Q2 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Mid-Year Review

	5 2020/21 Q2 Revenue Monitoring Report
	6 The World of James Herriot Centre, Thirsk
	Annex A - The Herriot Centre, Thirsk

	7 Making a Difference Grants
	8 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22
	10 Treadmills Phases 2a and 2b Development Update

